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1. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd Unit: Yuan Currency: CNY
Item Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31 Item Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31
Current assets: Current liabilities
Cashand cashequivalents | 5.1 347,066,157.87 567,162,576.77 | Short-term borrowings 5.19 21,677,320.31
aHSiL(i;for-tradmg financial 592 421,959,944.45 470,009,033.34 :—i|aetl)id|-i![‘§)ers-trad|ng financial
Derivative financial Derivative financial liabilities
Notes receivable Notes payable 5.20 8,033,553.53 9,137,361.03
Accounts receivable 5.3 224,371,968.97 196,956,220.12 | Accounts payable 5.21 497,514,033.62 491,874,91844
ﬁ‘ﬁgﬁé’mg receivable Advances from customers 5.22 3,071,036.45 2,624,26827
Advances to suppliers 54 5,711,474.63 4,551,467.78 | Contract liabilities 5.23 11,915,654.74 16,485,904.83
Other receivables 55 23,379,970.64 23,318,410.66 | Employee benefits payable 5.24 48,937,464.58 49,108,630.97
Including: Interests Taxes payable 5.25 10,369,538.07 58,404,241 58
Dividend receivable Other payables 5.26 29,628,451.67 35,202,629.21

Inventories 5.6 207,518,037.34 192,409,333.82 | Including: Interests payables
Contract assets Dividend payables
Assets classified as held Liabilities classified as held for
for sale sale - _
e i one o e e TG | 5 7
Other current assets 5.7 422,910,531.80 460,078,523.03 | Other current liabilities

Total current assets 1,652,918,085.70 | 1,914,485,565.52 Total current liabilities 638,572,602.44 663,721,323.12
Non-current assets: Non-current liabilities:
Debt investments 5.8 332,924,463.92 100,076,779.20 | |ong-term borrowings
Other debt investments Bonds payable
Long-term receivables Including: Preference share
h?/ggiﬁ(rems equity Perpetual capital securities
Other equity instrument | 5 40,000.00 40,000.00 | | ease fiabilities 5.08 393,273,77137 392,170,104.23

investment

cher _ non-current
financial assets

Long-term payables
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Item Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31 Item Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31
Investment properties 5.10 10,871,32129 |  18,464,309.18 '[;;’;‘a ferm employee benefits
Fixed assets 5.11 150,602,758.55 157,096,267.26 | Estimated liabilities
Constructioninprogress | 5.12 201,177.14 1,773,322.12 | Deferredincome
sgggl;ctive biological Deferred tax liabilities
Oil and gas assets Other non-current liabilities
Right-of-use assets 5.13 361,253,930.80 368,563,991.68 | Total non-current liabilities 393,273,771.37 392,170,104.23
Intangible assets 5.14 12,227,059.93 13,482,991.81 Total liabilities 1,031,846,373.81 1,055,891,427.35
dR:\?e?lzgSr?wgrr]\(tjexpenditure Owners’ equity
Goodwill Share capital 5.29 185,391,680.00 185,391,680.00
'E;)‘(’Sgn;:;m deferred | 5 1 6,999,294.66 7,770,803.06 | Other equity instruments
Deferred tax assets 5.16 10,798,811.95 8,384,808.67 | Including: Preference shares
Other non-currentassets | 5.17 205,261.00 136,429.00 Perpetual capital securities
Total ggsr;‘t‘;“”e”t 895,124,079.24 |  675,789,701.98 | Capital reserves 5.30 296,808,965.79 296,808,965.79
Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income 531 10,318,791.24 10,227,05351
Specific reserves
Surplus reserves 5.32 75,501,488.36 75,501,488.36
Retained earnings 5.33 494,651,699.16 507,010,039.53
gt‘t’ﬁlaétj’t‘a‘g}zrtg Sgﬁéﬁ{ company 1,062,672,624.55 1,074,939,227.19
Non-controlling interests 453,523,166.58 459,444,612.96
Total owners’ equity 1,516,195,791.13 1,534,383,840.15
Total assets 2,548,042,164.94 | 2,590,275,267.50 | Total liabilities and owners’ 2,548,042,164.94 2,590,275,267.50

equity

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

Chief Financial Officer: Wu Jianhua

Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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2. Statement of Financial Position of Parent Company as at 30 June 2024

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd Unit: Yuan Currency: CNY
Assets Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31 Liabilitiesand owners' equity Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31
Current assets: Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 5,727,835.16 7,989,557.11 | Short-term borrowings
Held for-trading financial Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities
Notes receivable Notes payable
Accounts receivable 15.1 609,567.02 1,572,953.88 | Accounts payable 1,087,33761 2,667,658.77
ﬁﬁgﬁéﬂg receivable Advances from customers 2,105,058.05 2,235,364.98
Advances to suppliers 133,544.34 30,581.02 | Contract liabilities 139,228.71 128,525.68
Other receivables 15.2 4,837,065.41 3,673,370.28 | Employee benefits payable 4,785,339.22 6,860,001.30
:’;‘égggg?e Interests Taxes payable 3,801,748.01 3,162,838.05
Dividend receivable Other payables 18,149,952.60 26,986,789.58
Inventories 1,400,074.59 1,819,766.41 | Including: Interests payables
Contract asset Dividend payables
posets classifiedas held Liabilities classified as held for sale
Non-current assets Non-current liabilities maturing
maturing within one year within one year
Other current assets Other current liabilities
Total current assets 12,708,086.52 | 15,086,228.70 Total current liabilities 30,068,664.20 42,041,178.36
Non-current assets: Non-current liabilities:
Debt investments Long-term borrowings
Other debt investments Bonds payable
Long-term receivables Including: Preference share
mgg;mmgq“”y 15.3 | 923,414,70156 | 923,414,70156 Perpetual capital securities
Other equity instrument 40,000.00 40,000.00 | Lease liabilities

investment
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Assets Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31 Liabilitiesand owners' equity Note 2024-6-30 2023-12-31
%g‘r’j][:ir‘;lg's%‘éf[ge”t Long-term payables
Investment properties 19,843,524.35 | 20,385,084.83 | Long-term employee benefits payable
Fixed assets 353,709.39 413,885.43 | Estimated liabilities
Constructionin progress 166,338.56 | Deferredincome
g’gstne(:j{l;ctive biological Deferred tax liabilities
Oil and gas assets Other non-current liabilities
Right-of-use assets Total non-current liabilities 0.00 0.00
Intangible assets Total liabilities 30,068,664.20 42,041,178.36
(I}:\?:Ie(l)mh and : Owners’ equity
pment expenditure
Goodwill Share capital 185,391,680.00 185,391,680.00
tgggr;;eegm deferred 1,272,350.77 1,432,877.67 | Other equity instruments
Deferred tax assets 781,721.49 849,924.71 | Including: Preference shares
Other non-current assets Perpetual capital securities
Total non-current assets 945,706,007.56 | 946,702,812.76 | Capital reserves 271,490,289.82 271,490,289.82
Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income
Specific reserves
Surplus reserves 75,501,488.36 75,501,488.36
Retained earnings 395,961,971.70 387,364,404.92
Total owners’ equity 928,345,429.88 919,747,863.10
Total assets 958,414,094.08 | 961,789,04146 | Total liabilities and owners' equity 958,414,094.08 961,789,041.46

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

Chief Financial Officer: Wu Jianhua

Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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3. Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd

Unit: Yuan

Currency: CNY

Same period of last

Item Note | Reporting period year
I. Revenue 5.34 788,085,998.03 625,410,489.15
Including: operating revenue 5.34 788,085,998.03 625,410,489.15
Il. Cost of sales 752,393,700.63 597,572,257.73
Including: operating cost 5.34 665,733,282.11 505,795,106.23
Taxes and surcharges 5.35 3,627,552.69 3,448,295.80
Selling and distribution expenses 5.36 15,705,789.17 13,161,232.97
General and administrative expenses 5.37 34,966,806.51 35,172,437.10
Researchand development expenses 5.38 32,146,701.14 29,119,021.28
Finance costs 5.39 213,569.01 10,876,164.35
Including: Interest expense 11,082,809.10 14,346,616.80
Interest income 7,043,615.67 2,383,878.11
Add: Other income 5.40 909,068.05 2,623,900.61
Investmentincome/(losses) 541 14,548,243.97 12,065,498.80
Including: Investment income from associates and joint
ventures
Gains/ (losses) from derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost
Income/ (losses) from net exposure hedging
Gains/ (losses) from changes in fair values 5.42 1,950,911.11 -1,484,625.00
Impairment loss of credit 5.43 1,310,991.27 171,286.00
Impairment loss of asset 5.44 -5,385,687.68 -3,071,317.80
Gains/ (losses) from disposal of assets 5.45 600,085.35 316,839.99
1. Profit/(loss) from operations 49,625,909.47 38,459,814.02
Add: Non-operating income 5.46 148,920.32 4,510,900.90
Less: Non-operating expenses 5.47 52,501.87 40,912.34
IV. Profit/(loss) before tax 49,722,327.92 42,929,802.58
Less: Income tax expenses 5.48 5,204,909.85 5,159,974.62
V. Net profit/(loss) 44,517,418.07 37,769,827.96
() Net profit/(loss) by continuity
Net profit/(loss) from continuing operation 44,517,418.07 37,769,827.96
Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operation
(1) Net profit/(loss) by ownership attribution
Attributable to owners of the parent 33,989,579.63 28,317,860.90
Attributable to non-controlling interests 10,527,838.44 9,451,967.06
VI. Other comprehensive income, after tax 5.49 122,316.97 6,135,813.71
(a) Attributable to owners of the parent 5.49 91,737.73 4,601,860.28
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Item

Note

Reporting period

Same period of last
year

(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

1.Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

2. Other comprehensive income using the equity method
which will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

3. Changes in fair value of other equity instrument investment

4. Changes in fair value of the Company’s own credit risks

(i1) ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

5.49

91,737.73

4,601,860.28

1. Other comprehensive income using the equity method
which will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

2. Changes in fair value of other debt instrument investment

3. Other comprehensive income arising from the
reclassification of financial assets

4. Provision for creditimpairment in other debt investments

5. Reserve for cash flow hedges

6. Exchange differences ontranslating foreign operations

5.49

91,737.73

4,601,860.28

(b) Attributable to non-controlling interests

5.49

30,579.24

1,533,953.43

VII. Total comprehensive income

44,639,735.04

43,905,641.67

Attributable to owners of the parent

34,081,317.36

32,919,721.18

Attributable to non-controlling interests

10,558,417.68

10,985,920.49

VIII. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share

16.2

0.18

0.15

Diluted earnings per share

16.2

0.18

0.15

Where business mergers under the same control occurred in the Reporting Period, net profit achieved by the merged parties before
the business mergers was CNY 0.00, with the corresponding amount for the same period of last year being CNY 0.00.

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

ChiefFinancial Officer:

Wu Jianhua

Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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4. Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income of Parent Company

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd

Unit: Yuan

Currency: CNY

Same period of last

Item Note | Reportingperiod year
I. Revenue 15.4 30,099,321.70 29,022,331.37
Less: Costs of sales 154 18,160,768.94 17,978,788.66
Taxes and surcharges 1,738,871.49 1,521,776.23
Selling and distribution expenses 2,163,347.05 2,438,519.11
Administrative expenses 1,740,236.93 1,784,917.72
Researchand development expenses - -
Finance costs 750,817.04 531,170.44
Including: Interest expense 3,489.90
Interest income 156,953.27 292,389.64
Add: Other income 137,551.83 88,976.54
Investment income/(losses) 15.5 50,748,305.69 58,215,670.49
Including: Investment income from associates and joint
ventures
Gains /(losses) from derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost
Income /(losses) from net exposure hedging
Gains/(losses) from changes in fair values
Impairment loss of credit -21,905.00 62,852.61
Impairment loss of asset -124,775.72 -851,905.61
Gains/(losses) from disposal of assets - -
I. Profit/(loss) from operations 56,284,457.05 62,282,753.24
Add: Non-operating income 38,150.00 129,230.00

Less: Non-operating expenses

I11. Profit/(loss) before tax

56,322,607.05

62,411,983.24

Less: Income tax expenses 1,377,120.27 1,060,114.10
IV. Net profit/(loss) 54,945,486.78 61,351,869.14
Net profit/(loss) from continuing operation 54,945,486.78 61,351,869.14

Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operation

V. Other comprehensive income, after tax

(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

1.Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

2. Other comprehensive income using the equity method
which will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
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Item

Note

Reporting period

Same period of last
year

3. Changes in fair value of other equity instrument investment

4. Changes in fair value of'the Company’s own credit risks

(ii) ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income using the equity method
which will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

2. Changes in fair value of other debt instrument investment

3. Other comprehensive income arising from the
reclassification of financial assets

4. Provision for credit impairment in other debt investments

5. Reserve for cash flowhedges

6. Exchange differencesontranslating foreign operations

VI. Total comprehensive income

54,945,486.78

61,351,869.14

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong ChiefFinancial Officer:

Wu Jianhua

Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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5. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd

Unit: Yuan

Currency: CNY

Same period of last

Item Note Reporting period year
I. Cash flows from operating activities
SeCr:&scigecelved from the sale of goods and the rendering of 744.020,596.18 541.005,360.91
Cash received from tax refund 64,704,665.32 39,806,393.56
Other cash received relating to operating activities 5.50 31,938,727.92 49,360,930.71
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities 840,663,989.42 630,172,685.18
Cash payments for goods purchased and services received 568,982,943.37 460,257,977.11
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 162,193,081.64 124,584,413.89
Payments of taxes 64,227,780.29 15,848,581.83
Other cash payments relating to operating activities 5.50 71,557,176.73 59,229,209.75
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities 866,960,982.03 659,920,182.58
Net cash flows from operating activities -26,296,992.61 -29,747,497.40
1. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal and redemption of investments 101,260,500.00 150,281,850.00
Cash received from returns on investments 11,292,745.00 12,579,336.44
asl;lgzttsca?]sdhéﬁ]cgrl\I/ggg_r%nrwngj;ssg%?gls of fixed assets, intangible 1,022.498.75 854.004.23
Net cash received from disposals of subsidiaries and other
business units
Other cash received relating to investing activities 5.50 268,987,022.90 253,023,312.02
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 382,562,766.65 416,738,502.69
as(slgfsh payments to acquire fixed, intangible and other long-term 14.149,364.23 19.144,947.17
Cash payments to acquire investments 280,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
unl}ltit cash payments to acquire subsidiaries and other business 0.00 0.00
Other cash payments relating to investing activities 5.50 241,218,285.85 304,493,112.02
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities 535,367,650.08 473,638,059.19
Net cash flows from investing activities -152,804,883.43 -56,899,556.50
I11. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from capital contributions
Including: Cash received from absorbing minority
shareholders' equity investment by subsidiaries
Cash received from borrowings 21,282,600.00 21,469,800.00
Other cash receivedrelating to financing activities 5.50 6,069,665.05 2,440,824.50
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities 27,352,265.05 23,910,624.50
Cash repayments of debts
Cash payments for dividends, distribution of profit and interest 60 612.944.83 75 022.727.49
expenses it s
Other cash payments relating to financing activities 5.50 4,301,333.56 4,369,335.92

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities

64,914,278.39

79,392,063.41

10
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Same period of last

Item Note Reporting period vear
Net cash flows from financing activities -37,562,013.34 -55,481,438.91
(Ia\émligfleé:rt]t%f foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash -1,332,588.95 686.059.36
V. Netincrease/ (decrease) incashand cash equivalents -217,996,478.33 -141,442,433.45
Plus: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 561,809,622.45 575,511,846.95
VI. Cash and cash equivalentsat the end of the period 343,813,144.12 434,069,413.50
ChiefFinancial Officer: Wu Jianhua Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

11
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6. Statement of Cash Flows of Parent Company

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd

Unit: Yuan

Currency: CNY

Same period of

Item Note Reporting period last year
I. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from the sale of goods and the rendering of 1,760,436.27 2.264.442.48
services
Cash received from tax refund 4,882.54 17,976.54
Other cash received relating to operating activities 30,502,889.54 30,909,811.64
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities 32,268,208.35 33,192,230.66
Cash payments for goods purchased and services received 2,328,505.23 5,268,234.43
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 3,016,039.56 2,876,032.08
Payments of taxes 6,501,551.23 5,258,320.56
Other cash payments relating to operating activities 29,296,111.31 22,842,197.56
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities 41,142,207.33 36,244,784.63
Net cash flows from operating activities -8,873,998.98 -3,052,553.97
Il. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal and redemption of investments
Cash received from returns on investments 50,748,305.69 58,215,670.49
Net cash received from disposals of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets
Net cash received from disposals of subsidiaries and other
business units
Other cash receivedrelating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 50,748,305.69 58,215,670.49
Cash payments to acquire fixed, intangible and other Tong-
term assets
Cash payments to acquire investments
Net cash payments to acquire subsidiaries and other business
units
Other cash payments relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities 0.00 0.00
Net cash flows from investing activities 50,748,305.69 58,215,670.49
I11. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from capital contributions
Cash received from borrowings
Other cash receivedrelating to financing activities 1,802,497.32
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities 0.00 1,802,497.32
Cash repayments of debts -
Cash payments for dividends, distribution of profit and interest 44133 080.76 55 617 504.00

expenses

12
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Same period of

Item Note Reporting period |
astyear
Other cash payments relating to financing activities 156,960.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities 44,133,080.76 55,774,464.00

Net cash flows from financing activities

-44,133,080.76

-53,971,966.68

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents -2,947.90 -615,202.24
V. Netincrease/ (decrease)incashand cash equivalents -2,261,721.95 575,947.60

Plus: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 7,989,5657.11 7,931,576.16
VI. Cash and cash equivalentsat the end of the period 5,727,835.16 8,507,523.76

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

ChiefFinancial Officer:

13

Wu Jianhua

Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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7. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd Unit: Yuan Currency: CNY
Reporting period
Owners’ equity attributableto the parent company
Item Other equity instruments
L oth Non-controlling Total owners’
. ess: ther . : interests equity
. Capital . Specific Surplus Retained
Share capital Perpetual Treasury comprehensive . Subtotal
Preference cagietal Others reserves stock income reserves reserves earnings
shares -
securities

1. Balance brought forward

185,391,680.00

296,808,965.79

10,227,053 51

75,501,488.36

507,010,039.53

1,074,939,227.19

459,444,612.96

1,534,383,840.15

Add:Changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior perioderrors

Business combination under
common control

Others

1. Balance asat 1 January

185,391,680.00

296,808,965.79

10,227,053 51

75,501,488.36

507,010,039.53

1,074,939,227.19

459,444,612.96

1,534,383,840.15

111. Changes in equity during the _ R N -
reporting period 91,737.73 12,358,340.37 12,266,602.64 5,921,446.38 18,188,049.02
(i) T otal comprehensive income 91,737.73 33,989579.63 34,081,317.36 10,558,417.68 44,639,735.04

(ii) Capital contributions or withdrawals
by owners

1. Ordinary shares contributed by
shareholders

2. Capital contributed by holders of
other equity instruments

3. Share-based paymentsrecognised
in owners’ equity

4. Others

(i) Profit distribution ~46,347,920.00 46,347,020.00 | -16,479,864.07 ~62,827,784.07
1. Withdrawal of surplus reserves

2. Profit distributionto owners (or -46,347,920.00 -46,347,920.00 | -16,479,864.07 -62,827,784.07

shareholders)

3. Others

(iv) T ransfer between owners' equity

1. Capital reservestransfer to share
capital

14
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Reportingperiod

Owners’ equity attributableto the parent company

Item Other equity instruments
oth Non-controlling Total owners’
i Less: ther i ; interests equi
Share capital Perpetual rg;prlvt:‘sl Treasury comprehensive rsepsicrlvﬁecs rselsjggi:; 5::2:2;2 Subtotal quity
Prsgzt:zr;ce capital Others stock income
securities

2. Surplus reservestransfer to share

capital

3. Surplus reserves used to cover

accumulated deficits

4. Definedbenefit plan transferto

retained earnings

5. Other comprehensive income
transfer toretained earnings

6. Others

(v) Specific reserves

1. Withdrawal duringthe reporting

period

2. Usage during the reporting period

(vi) Others 0.01 0.01

IV. Balance carried forward

185,391,680.00

296,808,965.79

10,318,791.24

75,501,488.36

494,651,699.16

1,062,672,624.55

453,523,166.58

1,516,195,791.13

15
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(Continued)
The same period of last year
Owners’ equity attributableto the parent company
Item Otherequity instruments
Perpe L oth Non-controlling Total owners’
. ess: ther . . interests equity
. tual Capital . Specific Surplus Retained n
Share capital Preferen capita reserves Treasury compre hensive reserves reserves earnings Subtotal
ce | Others stock income
shares securi
ties
1. Balance broughtforward 185,391,680.00 296,808,965.79 8,130,895.08 68,925,849.64 481,265,907.40 | 1,040,523,297.91 449,285,424.88 | 1,489,808,722.79
Add:Changes in accounting policy
Correction of prior perioderrors
Business combination under common
control
Others

1. Balance asat 1 January 185,391,680.00 296,808,965.79 8,130,895.08 68,925 ,849.64 481,265,907.40 | 1,040,523,29791 449,285,424.88 1,489,808,722.79
111. Changes in equity during the
reporting period 4,601,860.28 -27,299,643.10 -22,697,782.82 -8,419,303.00 -31,117,085.82
(i) Total comprehensive income 4,601,860.28 28,317,860.90 32,919,721.18 10,985,920.49 43,905,641.67
(ii) Capital contributions or withdrawals by
owners

1. Ordinary shares contributed by
shareholders

2. Capital contributed by holders of other
equity instruments

3. Share-based paymentsrecognised in
owners’ equity

4. Others
(iii) Profit distribution -55,617,504.00 -55,617,504.00 -19,405,223.50 -75,022,727.50

1. Withdrawal of surplus reserves

2. Profitdistributiontoowners (or -55,617,504.00 | -55,617,504.00 | -19,40522350 | -75,022,727.50

shareholders)

3. Others

(iv) Transfer between owners' equity

1. Capital reservestransfer to share
capital

2. Surplus reservestransfer to share
capital
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The same period of last year

Owners’ equity attributableto the parent company
Item Other equity instruments
Perpe L oth Non-controlling Total owners’
i €ss: ther ifi i interests equity
. tual Capital . Specific Surplus Retained
Share capital Preferen capita reserves Treasury compre hensive reserves reserves earnings Subtotal
ce | Others stock income
shares securi
ties

3. Surplus reservesused to cover

accumulated deficits

4. Definedbenefit plan transferto

retained earnings

5. Other comprehensive income transfer to
retained earnings

6. Others

(v) Specific reserves

1. Withdrawal duringthe reporting period

2. Usage during the reporting period

(vi) Others 0.01 0.01
IV. Balance carried forward 185,391,680.00 296,808,965.79 12,732,755.36 68,925,849.64 453,966,264.30 | 1,017,825,515.09 440,866,121.88 | 1,458,691,636.97

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong

Chief Financial Officer:
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8. Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity of Parent Company

Prepared by: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd

Unit: Yuan

Currency: CNY

Item

Reporting period

Share capital

Other equity instruments

Preference
shares

Perpetual
capital
securities

Others

Capital reserves

Less:
Treasury
stock

Other
comprehensive
income

Specific
resenes

Surplus
reserves

Retained earnings

Total owners’ equity

1. Balance brought forward

185,391,680.00

271,490,289.82

75,501,488.36

387,364,404.92

919,747,863.10

Add:Changes in accounting policy

Correctionof prior perioderrors

Others

1l. Balance asat 1 January

185,391,680.00

271,490,289.82

75,501,488.36

387,364,404.92

919,747,863.10

111. Changes in equity during the re porting period

8,597,566.78

8,597,566.78

(i) T otal comprehensive income

54,945 486.78

61,351,869.14

(ii) Capital contributions or withdrawals by owners

1. Ordinary shares contributed by
shareholders

2. Capital contributed by holders of
other equity instruments

3. Share-based payments recognised in owners’
equity

4. Others

(iii) Profit distribution -46,347,920.00 -46,347,920.00
1. Withdrawal of surplus reserves

2. Profitdistributiontoowners (orshareholders) -46,347,920.00 -46,347,920.00

3. Others

(iv) Transfer between owners' equity

1. Capital reservestransfer to share capital
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Reporting period

Other equity instruments

Item Less: Other .
Share capital preference | Ferpewal Capital reserves | Treasury | comprehensive ?epseecrl\fez i‘;;ﬂsz
capital Others stock income
securities

Retained earnings Total owners’ equity
shares

2. Surplus reservestransfer to sharecapital

3. Surplus reserves used to cover accumulated
deficits

4. Definedbenefit plan transferto retained earnings

5. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained
earnings

6. Others

(v) Specific reserves

1. Withdrawal duringthe reporting period

2. Usage during the reporting period

(vi) Others

IV. Balance carried forward 185,391,680.00 271,490,289.82

75,501,488.36 395,961,971.70 928,345,429.88
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(Continued)

Item

Same period of lastyear

Otherequity instruments

Share capital

Preference

Perpetual
capital

shares securities|

Others

Capital reserves

Less: Other .
Treasury|comprehensive fepseecrl\zz
stock income

Surplusreserves

Retained earnings

Total owners’ equity

1. Balance broughtforward 185,391,680.00 271,490,289.82, 68,925,849.64] 383,801,160.49 909,608,979.95
Add:Changes in accounting policy

Correction of prior perioderrors

Others
1. Balance asat 1 January 185,391,680.00 271,490,289.82| 68,925,849.64 383,801,160.49 909,608,979.95

111. Changesin equity during the reporting period

5,734,365.14

5,734,365.14

(i) Total comprehensive income

61,351,869.14

61,351,869.14

(i) Capital contributions or withdrawals by owners

1. Ordinary shares contributed by
shareholders

2. Capital contributed by holders of
other equity instruments

3. Share-based payments recognised in owners’
equity

4. Others

(iii) Profit distribution -55,617,504.00 -55,617,504.00
1. Withdrawal of surplus reserves

2. Profitdistributionto owners (orshareholders) -55,617,504.00 -55,617,504.00)

3. Others

(iv) Transfer between owners' equity

1. Capital reservestransfer to share capital
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Same period of lastyear
Otherequity instruments
Item Less: Other |o . el
Share capital Perpetual Capital reserves ‘Treasury|comprehensive p Surplusreserves Retained earnings Total owners’ equity
Preference i stock income | C>¢™
hares capital (Others
s securities
2. Surplus reservestransfer to sharecapital
3. Surplus reserves used to cover accumulated
deficits
4. Definedbenefit plan transferto retained earningy
5. Other comprehensive income transfer to retained
earnings
6. Others
(v) Specific reserves
1. Withdrawal duringthe reporting period
2. Usage during the reporting period
(vi) Others
1V. Balance carried forward 185,391,680.00) 271,490,289.82| 68,925,849.64 389,535,525.63 915,343,345.09

Legal Representative: Cai Yuansong ChiefFinancial Officer: Wu Jianhua Finance Manager: Wu Jianhua
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Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for H1 2024

(Allamounts are expressed in Renminbi Yuan (“CNY”) unless otherwise stated)

1. BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.1 Corporate Information

Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (hereafter “the Company or TKC”) was established
in the People’s Republicof China (“the PRC”) in 1988 as a wholly owned foreign investment
enterprise, the Company named in TsannKuen China (Xiamen) Ltd., firstly, invested by the
Fordchee (Hongkong) Co., Ltd., EUPA Industry Corporation Limited and Hong Kong Fillman
investment Co., Ltd.. On 16 February 1993, with the approval of the Ministry of Foreign
Trade and Economic Co-operation, the Company was reorganized intoan incorporated
company and was renamed as TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. In June 1993, the
Companyissued 40,000,000 new shares pursuantto aninternational placingand public
offerand these new shares (“B shares”) were then listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
on 30 June 1993. Accordingto the “Intended Implementation of Share Reducing Proposal”
of the 5th extraordinary board of director of 2012 and the 3rd extraordinary shareholders’
general meeting of 2012, obtainedthe consent from the Investment Promotion Bureau of
Xiamen which is authorized by the Ministry of Commerce and the approval
documents”"The Approval by Investment Promotion Bureau of Xiamen to Consent the
Capital Reduction of TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd”(IPB audit [2012] NO. 698), as
the base 1,112,350,077 shares of the total original share capital, forimplementation of
share reducing model that all registered shareholders who was recorded on 28 December
2012 with the proportion 6:1 to reduce the shares. After the implementation of share
reducing model, total share capital was reduced from 1,112,350,077 shares to 185,391,680
shares of the company. Until 30 June 2024, the Company’s share capital is CNY 185,391,680.
Following The Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republicof China approved (The No.
[2005]3107 “Agreed in Principle to the Ministry of Commerce on TsannKuen (China)
Enterprise Co., Ltd. Shares Traded Sponsor of the Approval”), On 6 December 2006, the
Company received the [2006] No.266 file “The notice of TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co.,
Ltd, concerningthe Approval of non-listed Foreign Shares Traded” from China Securities

Regulatory Commission. The China Securities Regulatory Commission agreed 700,476,830
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unlisted shares (account for 62.97% of the share capital) held by the Company’s
shareholders, EUPA Industry Corporation Limited, Fordchee Development Limited, and
Fillman Investment Limited to transferinto B shares. On 29 November 2007, these B shares
could be listed and exercised on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Up to 30 June 2024, total B
shares held by the three legal shareholders (EUPA Industry Corporation Limited, Fordchee
Development Limited, and Fillman Investment Limited) are 82,830,966 shares afterthe
implementation of share reducing model (Accounts for 44.68% of the share capital).

Legal representative: Cai Yuansong

Place of registration: No.88 Xinglong Road, Huli Industrial District, Xiamen, Fujian Province

The parent: STAR COMGISTIC CAPITAL CO.,LTD.

The Company operates within the electrical machinery and equipment manufacturing

industry.
Theindustry of the company: electrical machinery and equipment manufacturing.

The companyis actually engaged in the main business activities are: Develop, produce and
manufacture small home appliances of gourmet cooking, home helper, tea and coffee;
design and manufacture moldsrelated to the above products, sell the products at home

and abroad, and provide after-sales service.

The financial statementsapproved by the resolution of the Board of Directors on 09 March
2024, in accordance with the Articles of Association, the financial statements will be

submitted to the shareholders meeting for consideration.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Preparation

Based on going concern, according to actually occurred transactions and events, the
Company preparesits financial statementsin accordance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises —Basic standards and concrete accounting standards, Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises —Application Guidelines, Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises —Interpretations and other relevant provisions (collectively known as
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, issued by Ministry of Finan ce of PRC”). In
addition,the Company complies with the Compilation Rules for Information Disclosure by
Companies Offering Securities to the PublicNo.15 — General Provisions on Financial

Reports (2023 Revision)issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) to
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disclose its financial information.

2.2 Going Concern

The Company has assessed its ability to continually operate for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period, and no matters that may resultin doubt onits ability
as a going concern were noted. Therefore, itis reasonable forthe Companyto prepare

financial statements on the goingconcern basis.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The followingssignificantaccounting policies and accounting estimates of the Company are
formulated in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Businesses not mentioned are complied with relevant accounting policies of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

3.1 Statement of Compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
The Company preparesits financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, truthfully and completely reflecting the
Company’s financial position as of 30 June 2024, and its operatingresults, changesin
shareholders' equity, cash flows and other related information for the year then ended.

3.2 Accounting Period
The accountingyear of the Companyis fromJanuary 1 to December 31 in calendar year.

3.3 Operating Cycle

The normal operating cycle of the Companyis oneyear.

3.4 Functional Currency

The Company takes Renminbi Yuan (“CNY”) as the functional currency.

The Company’soverseas subsidiaries choose the currency of the primary economic
environmentin which the subsidiaries operate as the functional currency.

3.5 Methodology for determining materiality criteria and basis for selection

Items Materiality Criteria
Significant debt investments Amount=CNY 50,000,000.00

The Company identifies subsidiaries whose total
Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries revenue exceeds 50% of the total group profits as

significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries
3.6 Accounting Treatment of Business Combinations under and not under Common

Control
3.6.1 Business combinations under common control

The assets and liabilities that the Company obtainsin a business combination under
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common control shall be measured at their carrying amount of the acquired entity at the
combinationdate. If the accounting policy adopted by the acquired entity is different from
thatadopted by the acquiring entity, the acquiring entity shall, accordingto accounting
policyit adopts, adjust the relevantitemsin the financial statements of the acquired party
based on the principal of materiality. As for the difference between the carrying amount of
the net assets obtained by the acquiring entity and the carrying amount of the
consideration paid by it, the capital reserve (capital premium or share premium) shall be
adjusted. If the capital reserve (capital premium or share premium) is not sufficient to
absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

Refer to Note 3.7 (6) for accountingtreatment of business combination under common
control by step acquisitions.

3.6.2 Business combinations not under common control

The assets and liabilities that the Company obtainsin a business combination not under
common control shall be measured at their fair value at the acquisition date. If the
accounting policy adopted by the acquired entityis different from that adopted by the
acquiring entity, the acquiringentity shall, accordingto accounting policy it adopts, adjust
the relevantitemsin thefinancial statements of the acquired entity based on the principal
of materiality. The acquiring entity shall recognise the positive balance between the
combination costs and the fairvalue of the identifiablenet assets it obtains from the
acquired entity as goodwill. The acquiring entity shall, pursuant to the following provisions,
treat the negative balance between the combination costs and the fair value of the
identifiable net assets it obtains from the acquired entity:

3.6.2.1 It shall review the measurement of the fair values of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities it obtains from the acquired entity as well as the
combination costs;

3.6.2.2 If, after the review, the combination costs are still less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets it obtains from the acquired entity, the balance shall be recognised
in profit or loss of the reporting period.

Refer to Note 3.7.6 or the accounting treatment of business combination underthe same
control by step acquisitions.

3.6.3 Treatment of business combination related costs

The intermediary costs such as audit, legal services and valuation consultingand other
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related management costs that are directly attributable to the business combination shall
be charged in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. The costs to issue
equity or debt securities for the consideration of business combinationshall be recorded
as a part of the value of the respect equity or debt securities upon initial recognition.

3.7 Judgement Criteria for Control and Method of Preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements

3.7.1 Judgement Criteria for Control and Scope of consolidation

Control exists when the Company has all the following: power over the investee; exposure,
or rightsto variable returns from the Company’sinvolvementwith the investee; and the
ability to useits power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’sreturns. The
definition of control consists of three basic elements: first, the investor has power over the
investee; second, it enjoys variable returns as a result of its participation in the investee's
related activities; and third, it has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of its returns. When the Company'sinvestmentin an investee has these three

elements, it indicates thatthe Companyis able to control the investee.

The scope of consolidated financial statementsshall be determined based on control. It not
onlyincludes subsidiaries determined based on voting power (or similar) or other
arrangement, but also structured entities under one or several contract arrangements.
Subsidiariesare the entities that controlled by the Company (including enterprise, a
divisible part of the investee, and structured entity controlled by the enterprise). A
structured entity (sometimes called a Special Purpose Entity) is an entity that has been
designed so that votingor similarrights are not the dominant factorin decidingwho
controls the entity.

3.7.2 Special requirement as the parent company is an investment entity

If the parent companyis an investmententity, it should measureitsinvestmentsin
particular subsidiaries as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss instead of
consolidatingthose subsidiariesin its consolidated and separate financial statements.
However, as an exception to this requirement, if a subsidiary provides investment-related
services or activities to the investment entity, it should be consolidated.

The parent companyis defined as investment entity when meets following conditions:

3.7.2.1 Obtains funds from one or more investors forthe purpose of providingthose
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investors with investment management services;3.7.2.2 Commits to its investors that its
business purposeistoinvest fundssolely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both; and

3.7.2.3 Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investmentson a
fairvalue basis.

If the parent company becomes an investment entity, it shall cease to consolidate its
subsidiaries at the date of the change in status, except for any subsidiary which provides
investment-related services or activities to the investment entity shallbe continued to be
consolidated. The deconsolidation of subsidiariesis accounted for as though the
investment entity partially disposed subsidiaries without loss of control.

When the parent company previously classified as an investment entity ceases to be an
investment entity, subsidiary that was previously measured at fair value through profitor
lossshall be included in the scope of consolidated financial statements at the date of the
change in status. The fair value of the subsidiary at the date of change represents the
transferred deemed consideration in accordance with the accounting for business
combinationnotunder common control.

3.7.3 Method of preparing the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements shallbe prepared by the Company based on the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, and using other related
information.

When preparing consolidated financial statements, the Company shall consider the entire
group as an accounting entity, adopt uniform accounting policies and apply the
requirements of Accounting Standard for Business Enterprisesrelated to recognition,
measurement and presentation. The consolidated financial statements shall reflect the
overall financial position, operating results, and cash flows of the group.

3.7.3.1 Like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows of the
parent are combined with those of the subsidiaries.

3.7.3.2 The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is eliminated
(off-set) against the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

3.7.3.3 Eliminate the impact of intragroup transactions between the Company and the
subsidiaries or between subsidiaries, and when intragroup transactionsindicate an

impairment of related assets, the losses shall be recognised in full.
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3.7.3.4 Adjust special transactions from the perspective of the group.

3.7.4 Method of preparation of the consolidated financial statements when subsidiaries
are acquired or disposed in the reporting period

3.7.4.1 Acquisition of subsidiariesor business

3.7.4.1.1 Subsidiaries or business acquired through business combination under common
control

a. When preparing consolidated statements of financial position, the opening balance of
the consolidated balance sheet shall be adjusted. Related items of comparative financial
statements shallbe adjusted as well, deemingthat the combined entity has always existed
ever since the ultimate controlling party began to control.

b. Incomes, expenses, and profits of the subsidiaryincurred from the beginningof the
reporting period to the end of the reporting period shall be included intothe consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Related items of comparative financial statements shall be
adjusted as well, deemingthat the combined entity has always existed ever since the
ultimate controlling party began to control.

c. Cash flows fromthe beginning of the reporting period to the end of the reporting period
shall be included into the consolidated statement of cash flows. Related items of
comparative financial statements shall be adjusted as well, deeming that the combined
entity has always existed ever since the ultimate controlling party began to control.
3.7.4.1.2 Subsidiaries or business acquired through business combination not under
common control

a. When preparingthe consolidated statements of financial position, the opening balance
of the consolidated statements of financial positionshall not be adjusted.

b. Incomes, expenses, and profits of the subsidiary incurred from the acquisitiondate to
the end of the reporting period shall be included into the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

c. Cash flows from the acquisition date to the end of the reporting period shall beincluded
into the consolidated statement of cash flows.

3.7.4.3 Disposal of subsidiaries or business

3.7.4.3.1 When preparing the consolidated statements of financial position, the opening
balance of the consolidated statements of financial position shall not be adjusted.

3.7.4.3.2 Incomes, expenses, and profitsincurred from the beginning of the subsidiary to
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the disposal dateshall beincluded into the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.7.4.3.3 Cash flows from the beginning of the subsidiary to the disposal date shall be
included into the consolidated statement of cash flows.

3.7.5 Special consideration in consolidation elimination

3.7.5.1 Long-term equity investment held by the subsidiaries to the Companyshall be
recognised as treasury stock of the Company, which offsets with the owner’s equity,
represented as “treasury stock” under “owner’s equity” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Long-term equity investment held by subsidiaries between each otheris accounted for
takinglong-term equity investment held by the Companytoits subsidiaries as reference.
Thatis, the long-term equity investment is eliminated (off- set) against the portion of the
corresponding subsidiary’sequity.

3.7.5.2 Due to not belongingto paid-in capital (or share capital) and capital reserve, and
being different from retained earnings and undistributed profit, “Specificreserves” and
“General risk provision” shall be recovered based on the proportion attributable to owners
of the parent company afterlong-term equity investment to the subsidiaries is eliminated
with the subsidiaries’ equity.

3.7.5.3 If temporary timing difference between the book value of the assets and liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position and theirtax basisis generated asa
result of elimination of unrealized inter-company transaction profitor loss, deferred tax
assets of deferred tax liabilities shall be recognised, and income tax expense in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss shall be adjusted simultaneously, excluding
deferred taxes related to transactions or events directly recognised in owner’s equity or
business combination.

3.7.5.4 Unrealised inter-company transactions profit or loss generated from the Company
sellingassets to its subsidiariesshall be eliminated against “net profit attributed to the
owners of the parent company”in full. Unrealized inter-company transactions profit or loss
generated from the subsidiaries selling assets to the Company shall be eliminated between
“net profit attributed to the owners of the parent company” and “non-controlling interests”
pursuanttothe proportionof the Companyin the related subsidiaries. Unrealized inter-
company transactions profit or loss generated from the assets sales between the

subsidiaries shall be eliminated between “net profit attributed to the owners of the parent
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company” and “non-controllinginterests” pursuantto the proportion of the Companyin
the selling subsidiaries.

3.7.5.5 If loss attributed to the minority shareholders of a subsidiary in current period is
more than the proportion of non-controllinginterest in this subsidiary at the beginning of
the period, non-controllinginterestis still to be written down.

3.7.6 Accounting for Special Transactions

3.7.6.1 Purchasing of non-controllinginterests

Where, the Company purchases non-controllinginterests ofits subsidiary, in the separate
financial statements of the Company, the cost of the long-term equity investmentobtained
in purchasing non-controllinginterests is measured at the fair value of the consideration
paid. In the consolidated financial statements, difference between the cost of the long-
term equity investment newly obtainedin purchasing non-controllinginterests and share
of the subsidiary’s net assets from the acquisition date or combination date continuingly
calculated pursuantto the newly acquired shareholding proportion shall be adjusted into
capital reserve (capital premium or share premium). If capital reserveis not enough to be
offset, surplus reserve and undistributed profit shall be offset in turn.

3.7.6.2 Gaining control over the subsidiary in stages through multiple transactions
3.7.6.2.1 Business combination under common controlin stages through multiple
transactions

On the combinationdate, in the separate financial statement, initial cost of the long-term
equity investment is determined accordingto the share of carrying amount of the
acquiree’s net assetsin the ultimate controlling entity’s consolidated financial statements
after combination. The difference between theinitial cost of the long-term equity
investment and the carryingamount of the long-term investment held prior of control plus
bookvalue of additional consideration paid at acquisition date is adjustedinto capital
reserve (capital premium orshare premium). If the capital reserveis not enough to absorb
the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against surplus reserve and undistributed profit
inturn.

In the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities acquired during the
combinationshould be recognized at their carrying amountin the ultimate controlling
entity’s consolidated financial statements on the combination date unless any adjustment

is resulted from the difference in accounting policies. The difference between the carrying
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amount of the investment held prior of control plus book value of additional consideration
paid onthe acquisitiondate and the net assets acquired through the combinationis
adjusted into capital reserve (capital premium or share premium). If the capital reserveis
not enough to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained
earnings.

If the acquiringentity holds equity investmentin the acquired entity priorto the
combinationdate and the equityinvestmentis accounted for under the equity method,
related profit or loss, other comprehensive income and other changes in equity which have
been recognised duringthe period from the later of the date of the Company obtaining
original equity interest and the date of both the acquirer and the acquiree under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party to the combination date should be offset
againstthe openingbalance of retained earnings at the comparative financial statements

period respectively.

3.7.6.2.2 Business combination not under common control in stages through multiple
transactions

On the consolidation date, in the separate financial statements, the initial cost of long-
term equity investment is determined accordingto the carrying amount of the original
long-terminvestment plus the cost of new investment.

In the consolidated financial statements, the equity interest of the acquired entity held
priorto the acquisition date shall be re-measured at its fair value on the acquisition date.
Difference between the fair value of the equity interest and its book valueis recognised as
investmentincome. The other comprehensiveincome related to the equity interest held
priorto the acquisition date calculated through equity method, should be transferred to
current investmentincome of the acquisition period, excluding other comprehensive
income resulted from the remeasurement of the net assets or net liabilities underdefined
benefit plan. The Company shall disclose acquisition-date fair value of the equity interest
held priorto the acquisition date, and the related gains or losses due to the
remeasurement based on fair value.

3.7.6.3 Disposal of investment in subsidiaries without a loss of control

For partial disposal of the long-term equity investmentin the subsidiaries without a loss of
control, when the Company prepares consolidated financial statements, difference
between consideration received from the disposal and the corresponding share of

subsidiary’s net assets cumulatively calculated from the acquisition date or combination
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date shall be adjusted into capital reserve (capital premium or share premium). If the
capital reserve is not enough to absorb the difference, any excess shall be offset against
retained earnings.

3.7.6.4 Disposal of investment in subsidiaries with a loss of control

3.7.6.4.1 Disposal through one transaction

If the Companyloses controlin an investee through partial disposal of the equity
investment, when the consolidated financial statements are prepared, the retained equity
interest should be re-measured at fair value at the date of loss of control. The difference
between i) the fair value of consideration received from the disposal plus non-controlling
interest retained;ii) share of the former subsidiary’s net assets cumulatively calculated
from the acquisition date or combination date accordingto the original proportion of
equity interest, shall be recognised in currentinvestmentincome when controlis lost.
Moreover, other comprehensiveincome and other changes in equity related to the equity
investmentin the former subsidiary shall be transferred into currentinvestmentincome
when controlis lost, excluding other comprehensive income resulted from the

remeasurement of the movement of net assets or net liabilities under defined benefit plan.
3.7.6.4.2 Disposal in stages

In the consolidated financial statements, whether the transactionsshould be accounted for
as “a single transaction” needs to be decided firstly.

If the disposal in stages should not be classified as “a single transaction”, in the separate
financial statements, for transactions prior of the date of loss of control, carrying amount
of each disposal oflong-term equity investment need to be recognized, and the difference
between consideration received and the carrying amount of long-term equity investment
correspondingto the equity interest disposed should be recognized in current investment
income; inthe consolidated financial statements, the disposal transaction should be
accounted for accordingto related policy in “Disposal of long-term equity investmentin
subsidiaries without a loss of control”.

If the disposalin stages should be classified as “a single transaction”, these transactions
should be accounted for as a single transaction of disposal of subsidiary resultingin loss of
control. In the separate financial statements, for each transaction prior of the date of loss
of control, difference between considerationreceived and the carrying amount of long-
term equity investment correspondingto the equity interest disposed should be

recognised as other comprehensive income firstly, and transferred to profitor lossas a
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whole when control is lost; in the consolidated financial statements, for each transaction
prior of the date of loss of control, difference between consideration received and
proportionofthe subsidiary’snet assets correspondingto the equity interest disposed
should be recognised in profit or loss as a whole when control is lost.

In considering of the terms and conditions of the transactions as well as their economic
impact, the presence of one or more of the followingindicators may lead to account for
multiple transactions as a single transaction:

a. The transactions are entered into simultaneously orin contemplation of one another.
b. The transactions form a single transaction designedto achieve an overall commercial
effect.

c. The occurrence of one transaction depends on the occurrence of at least one other
transaction.

d. One transaction, when considered on its own merits, does not make economic sense,
but when considered together with the other transaction or transactions would be
considered economically justifiable.

3.7.6.5 Dilutingequityshare of parent companyinits subsidiaries due to additional
capital injection by the subsidiaries’ minority shareholders.

Other shareholders (minority shareholders) of the subsidiaries inject additional capital in
the subsidiaries, which resulted in the dilution of equity interest of parent companyin
these subsidiaries. In the consolidated financial statements, difference between share of
the correspondingsubsidiaries’ net assets calculated based on the parent’s equity interest
before and after the capital injection shall be adjusted into capital reserve (capital
premium or share premium). If the capital reserveis not enough to absorb the difference,

any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.
3.8 Classification of Joint Venture Arrangement and Accounting of Joint Operation

The joint venture arrangement refers to an arrangement jointly controlled by two or more
parties. The joint venture arrangement of this company s divided into joint operation and
jointventure.

3.8.1 Joint Operation

Joint operation refersto a joint venture arrangementin which this company owns the

assets related to the arrangement and assumes the liabilities related to the arrangement.
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The Company recognizes the followingitems related to its share of interestsin joint
operations and conducts accounting treatment in accordance with the provisions of the
relevant accountingstandardsfor business enterprises:

3.8.1.1 Recognition of assets held separatelyand jointly held assets accordingto their
shares;

3.8.1.2 Recognition of liabilities borne separately and jointly liabilities in accordance with
theirshares;

3.8.1.3 Recognition of income from the sale of its share of the output of the joint operation;
3.8.1.4 Recognition of the income generated by the sale of output from joint operations on
share-by-share basis;

3.8.1.5 Recognition of expenses incurred separately and expensesincurred in joint
operations accordingto their share.

3.8.2 Joint Venture

Jointventure refers to a jointarrangementin which the Company has rights onlyto the net
assets of the arrangement.

The Company accounts forits investmentsin joint venturesin accordance with the

provisions of the equity method of accounting relatingto long-term equity investments.

3.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash
equivalentsinclude short-term (generally within three months of maturity at acquisition),
highly liquid investmentsthat are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value.

3.10 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation of Foreign Currency Financial
Statements

3.10.1 Determination of the exchange rate for foreign currency transactions

At the time of initial recognition of a foreign currency transaction, theamountin the
foreign currency shall be translatedinto the amountin the functional currency at the spot
exchange rate of the transaction date, or at an exchange rate which is determined through
a systematicand reasonable method and is approximate to the spot exchange rate of the

transaction date (hereinafter referred to as the approximate exchange rate).
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3.10.2 Translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency on the balance
sheet date

The foreign currency monetaryitemsshall be translated at the spot exchange rate on the
balance sheet date. The balance of exchange arising from the difference between the spot
exchange rate on the balance sheet date and the spot exchangerate at the time of initial
recognition or priorto the balance sheet date shall be recorded into the profits and losses
at the current period. The foreign currency non-monetary items measured at the historical
cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date; for the
foreign currency non-monetary items restated to a fair value measurement, shall be
translated into the at the spot exchange rate at the date when the fair value was
determined, the difference between the restated functional currency amount and the
original functional currency amount shall be recorded into the profits and losses at the
current period.

3.10.3 Translation of foreign currency financial statements

Before translatingthe financial statements of foreign operations, the accounting period
and accountingpolicy shall be adjusted so as to conform to the Company. The adjusted
foreign operation financial statements denominatedin foreign currency (other than
functional currency) shall be translated in accordance with the following method:
3.10.3.1 The asset and liabilityitems in the statement of financial position shall be
translated at the spot exchange rates at the date of that statement of financial position.
The owners’ equity items except undistributed profit shallbe translated at the spot
exchange rates when they are incurred.

3.10.3.2 The income and expense items in the statement of profitand other
comprehensive income shall be translated at the spot exchange rates or approximate
exchange rate at the date of transaction.

3.10.3.3 Foreign currency cash flows and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries shall be
translated at the spot exchange rate or approximate exchange rate when the cash flows
are incurred. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is presented separatelyin the
statement of cash flows as an adjustmentitem.

3.10.3.4 The differences arising from the translation of foreign currency financial
statements shall be presented separately as “other comprehensiveincome” under the

owners’ equity items of the consolidated statement of financial position.
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When disposing a foreign operation involving loss of control, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relatingto that foreign operation recognised under other
comprehensiveincome in the statement of financial position, shall be reclassified into
current profit or loss according to the proportiondisposed.

3.11 Financial Instruments

Financial instrumentis any contract which gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

3.11.1 Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

A financial asset or a financial liability should be recognised in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, an entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

A financial asset can only be derecognised when meets one of the following conditions:
3.11.1.1 The rights to the contractual cash flows from a financial asset expire

3.11.1.2 The financial asset has been transferred and meets one of the following
derecognition conditions:

Financial liabilities (or part thereof) are derecognised only when the liability is
extinguished —i.e., when the obligation specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled
or expires. An exchange of the Company (borrower) and lender of debt instruments that
carry significantly different terms or a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
liability are both accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability.

Purchase or sale of financial assetsin a regular way shall be recognised and derecognised
usingtrade date accounting. A regular purchase or sale of financial assetsis a transaction
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulations or convention in the marketplace concerned. Trade
dateis the date at which the entity commits itselfto purchase or sell an asset.

3.11.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets

At initial recognition, the Company classified its financial asset based on both the business
model for managingthe financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset: financial asset at amortised cost, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) and financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVTOCI). Reclassification of financial assets is permitted if, and only if, the objective of the
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entity’s business model for managing those financial assets changes. In this circumstance,
all affected financial assets shall be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
after the changes in business model; otherwise, the financial assets cannot be reclassified
after initial recognition.

Financial assets shall be measured atinitial recognition at fair value. For financial assets
measured at FVTPL, transaction costs are recognised in current profit or loss. For financial
assets not measured at FVTPL, transaction costs should beincluded in the initial
measurement. Notes receivable or accounts receivable that arise from sales of goods or
rendering of services are initially measured at the transaction price defined in the
accountingstandard of revenue where the transaction does notinclude a significant
financingcomponent.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets will be based on their categories:

3.11.2.1 Financial asset at amortised cost

The financial asset at amortised cost category of classification applieswhen both the
following conditionsare met: the financial asset is held within the business model whose
objectiveis to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the
contractual term of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payment of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost by adopting the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition according to the
amortisationunder effective interest rate method or impairment are recognised in current
profit or loss.

3.11.2.2 Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The financial asset at FVTOCI category of classification applies when both the following
conditions are met: the financial asset is held within the business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the
contractual term of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payment of principal and interest on the principal amountoutstanding. All changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income except for gain or loss arising
from impairment or exchange differences, which should be recognised in current profit or
loss. At derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised under OCl is

reclassified to current profit or loss. However, interest income calculated based on the
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effective interest rate is included in current profit or loss.

The Company make an irrevocable decision to designate part of non-trading equity
instrument investments as measured through FVTOCI. All changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income except for dividend income recognised in
current profit or loss. At derecognition, cumulative gain or loss are reclassified to retained
earnings.

3.11.2.3 Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial asset except for abovementioned financial asset at amortised cost or financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), should be classified as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). These financial assets should be
subsequently measured at fair value. All the changes in fairvalue are included in current
profit or loss.

3.11.3 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Company classified the financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), loan commitments at a below-market interest rate and financial
guarantee contracts and financial asset at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets will be based on the classification:

3.11.3.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Held-for-tradingfinancial liabilities (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are classified as financial liabilitiesat FVTP. After
initial recognition, any gain or loss (includinginterest expense) are recognised in current
profit or loss except for those hedge accountingis applied. For financial liability thatis
designated as at FVTPL, changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changesin the own creditrisk of the issuer shall be presented in other comprehensive
income. At derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised under OCl is
reclassified to retained earnings.

3.11.3.2 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitmentisa commitment by the Companyto provide a loan to customer under
specified contract terms. The provision of impairment losses of loan commitments shall be
recognised based on expected credit losses model.

Financial guarantee contractis a contract that requires the Company to make specified

payments to reimburse the holder fora lossit incurs because a specified debtor fails to
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make payment when duein accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts liability shall be subsequently measured at the
higher of: The amount of the loss allowance recognised accordingto the impairment
principles of financial instruments; and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount ofincome recognised in accordance with the revenue principles.

3.11.3.3 Financial liabilitiesat amortised cost

After initial recognition, the Company measured other financialliabilities at amortised cost
usingthe effective interest method.

Except for special situation, financial liabilities and equity instrument should be classified in
accordance with the followingprinciples:

3.11.3.3.1 If the Company has no unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another
financial instrumentto fulfill a contractual obligation, this contractual obligation meets the
definition of financial liabilities. Some financial instruments do not comprise terms and
conditionsrelatedto obligations of delivering cash or another financial instrument
explicitly, yet they may include contractual obligationindirectly through other terms and
conditions.

3.11.3.3.2 If a financial instrumentmust or may be settled in the Company's own equity
instruments, it should be considered that the Company’s own equity instruments are
alternatives of cash or another financialinstrument, or to entitle the holder of the equity
instruments to sharingthe remainingrights over the net assets of theissuer. If the former
is the case, the instrumentis a liability of the issuer; otherwise, it is an equity instrument of
the issuer. Under some circumstances, it is regulated in the contract that the financial
instrument must or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, where the
amount of contractual rights and obligations are calculated by multip lyingthe number of
the equityinstrumentsto be available or delivered by its fair value upon settlement. Such
contracts shall be classified as financial liabilities, regardless whether the amount of
contractual rights and liabilities is fixed, or fluctuate totally or partially with variables other
than market price of the entity’s own equity instruments (such as interest rate, price of
some kind of goods or some kind of financial instrument).

3.11.4 Derivatives and embedded derivatives

At initial recognition, derivativesshall be measured at fair value at the date of derivative

contracts are signed and subsequently measured at fair value. The derivative with a
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positive fair value shall be recognized as an asset, and with a negative fair value shall be
recognised as a liability.

Gainsor losses arising from the changes in fair value of derivatives shall be recognised
directlyinto current profit or loss except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges
which shall be recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified into current
profit or loss when the hedged items affect profit or loss.

An embedded derivative isa component of a hybrid contract with a financial assetasa
host, the Company shall apply the requirements of financial asset classificationto the
entire hybrid contract. If a host thatis not a financial asset and the hybrid contractis not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, and the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economiccharacteristics and risks of the host, and a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, the
embedded derivative shall be separated from the hybrid instrument and accounted for as
a separate derivative instrument. Ifthe Companyis unable to measure the fair value of the
embedded derivative at the acquisition date or subsequently at the balance sheet date,
the entire hybrid contract is designated as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

3.11.5 Impairment of financial instrument

The Company shall recognise a loss allowance based on expected credit losses for financial
asset thatis measured at amortised cost, debtinvestment at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract asset, lease receivable, loan commitment, and financial
guarantee contract.

3.11.5.1 Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses of the financial
instruments with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Companyin
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
which is all cash shortfalls, discounted at the original effective interest rate or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible

default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
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12-month expected credit losses are the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
represent the expected credit losses that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or the
expected lifetime if the expected life of a financial instrumentis less than 12 months).

At each reportingdate, the Company classifies financial instrumentsinto three stages and
makes provisions for expected credit losses accordingly. A financial instrument of which
the credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognitionis at stage 1. The
Companyshall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument atan amount
equalto 12-month expected credit losses. A financial instrument with a significantincrease
in creditrisk since initial recognition butis not considered to be credit-impaired is at stage
2. The Companyshall measure the loss allowance for that financial instrumentatan
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. A financial instrument is considered to
be credit impaired as at the end of the reporting period is at stage 3. The Companyshall
measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company may assume that the credit risk on a financial instrumenthas notincreased
significantly sinceinitial recognitionifthe financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date and measure the loss allowance for that financial
instrument atan amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

For financial instruments at stage 1, stage 2 and those have low credit risk, the interest
revenue shall be calculated by applyingthe effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset (ie, impairment loss not been deducted). For financial
instruments at stage 3, interest revenue shall be calculated by applyingthe effective
interest rate to the amortised costs after deducting ofimpairment loss.

For notesreceivable, accounts receivable and accounts receivable financing, no matter it
contains a significant financing component or not, the Company shall measure the loss
allowance at the amount that equalsto the lifetime expected credit losses.

3.11.5.1.1 Receivables

For the notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts receivable
financing, contract assets and long-term receivables which are demonstrated to be
impaired by any objective evidence, or applicable forindividual assessment, the Company

shallindividually assess forimpairment and recognise the loss allowance for expected
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credit losses. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts receivable financing,
contract assets, and long-termreceivables, or the expected credit loss of a single financial
asset cannot be assessed at reasonable cost, such notes receivable, accounts receivable,
otherreceivables, accountsreceivable financing, contract assets, and long-term
receivables shall be divided into several groups based on similar credit risk characteristics
and calculate collectively on the expected credit loss. The determination basis of groups s
as following:

a. Notes Receivables

The Company measures the loss impairment in accordance with the amount equivalent to
the lifetime expected credit losses for notes receivables. The notes receivables are divided

into different groups based on credit risk characteristics:

ltem Basis for determining the groups

Bank acceptance hill The acceptoris a bank with less credit risk.

According to the credit risk of the acceptor, it should be the same as
Commercial acceptance bill

the “accounts receivable” combination.

b. Accounts Receivables

For accounts receivables that do not contain significantfinancing components, the
Company measures the lossimpairment in accordance with the amount equivalent to the
expected credit lossin the whole duration.

For accounts receivables and lease receivables that contain significant financing
components, the Company continuously chooses to measure the loss impairmentin
accordance with the amount equivalent to the expected credit loss in the whole duration.
Other than the accountsreceivable whose credit risk is assessed individually, the other

accounts receivables are grouped based on their credit risk characteristics:

Group Basis for determining the groups

This group uses the accounts receivables aging as the credit risk
Aging of Accounts Receivables
characteristics.

Related party relationships (except for evidencing that they cannot
Related parties

be received).

c. Other Receivables
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The Company assesses whether the credit risk of other receivables has significantly
increased since initial recognition, and utilizes the amount equivalent to the expected
creditloss inthe next 12 months orthe whole duration to measures the impairment loss
accordingly. Besides the other receivables that have individually assessed credit risk, the
rest of the other receivables are classified into different groups based on their credit risk

characteristics:

Group Basis for determining the groups

This group of receivables includes deposit receivables, advances on

Deposit guarantee
behalf of others and quality guarantee deposits to be collected in

daily activities.

This group is the declared export tax refund funds that have not
Export tax refund
been received.

This group uses the age of accounts receivable as the credit risk
Open credits
characteristics.

Related party relationships (Unless there is evidence that a credit
Related parties

loss may occur

The Company's aging calculation method based on the combination of aging recognition

credit risk characteristics:

The aging of accounts receivables for the portfolio of credit risk features recognized by

agingis calculated as follows:

Aging Accrual ratio (%)
Not overdue 0.50
1-30 days overdue 4.50
31-60 days overdue 20.00
61-90 days overdue 45.00
More than 90 days overdue 100.00

The aging of other receivables for the portfolio of credit risk features recognized by aging is

calculated as follows:

Aging Accrual ratio (%)
1-90 days 0.00
90-180 days 10.00
180-270 days 30.00
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Aging Accrual ratio (%)
270-360 days 50.00

More than one year 100.00

3.11.5.1.2 Debtinvestment and other debt investment

For debtinvestment and otherdebtinvestment, the Company shall calculate the expected
credit loss through the default exposure and the 12-month or lifetime expected credit loss
rate based on the nature of the investment, counterparty, and the type of risk exposure.
3.11.5.2 Low credit risk

If the financial instrument has a lowrisk of default, and the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligationsin the nearterm and adverse changesin
economic and business conditionsin the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations, then the financial
instrumentis considered to have low credit risk.

3.11.5.3 Significantincrease in credit risk

The Company shall assess whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, usingthe change in the risk of a default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument, through the comparison of therisk of a
default occurringon the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurringon the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.

To make that assessment, the Company shall consider reasonable and supportable
information, thatis available withoutundue cost or effort, and thatis indicative of
significantincreases in credit risk since initial recognition, including forward-looking
information. The information considered by the Company are as following:

a) Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk as a result of a change
in creditrisk since inception;

b) Existing or forecast adverse change in the business, financial or economic
conditions of the borrower that results in a significant change in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

c) An actual or expected significant change in the operatingresults of the borrower;
An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or

technological environment of the borrower;
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d) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supportingthe obligation orin the
qguality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements, which are expected to
reduce the borrower’s economicincentive to make scheduled contractual
payments or to otherwise have an effect on the probability of a default occurring;

e) Significant change that are expected to reduce the borrower’s economicincentive
to make scheduled contractual payments;

f) Expected changesin the loan documentationincludingan expected breach of
contract that may lead to covenant waivers or amendments, interest payment
holidays, interest rate step-ups, requiring additional collateral or guarantees, or
other changes to the contractual framework of the instrument;;

g) Significant changesin the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower;

h) Contractual paymentsare more than 30 days past due.

Dependingon the nature of the financial instruments, the Company shall assess whether
the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition on an individualfinancial
instrument or a group of financial instruments. When assessed based on a group of
financial instruments, the Company can group financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, for example, past due information and credit risk rating.
Generally, the Companyshall determine the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days
pastdue. The Companycan only rebut this presumption ifthe Company hasreasonable
and supportable informationthatis available without undue cost or effort, that
demonstrates that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
even though the contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

3.11.5.4 Credit-impairedfinancial asset

The Companyshall assess at each reporting date whether the creditimpairment has
occurred for financial asset at amortised cost and debt investment at fair value through
other comprehensiveincome. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; a breach of contract, such as a

default or past due event; the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
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reasons relatingto the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; itisbecomingprobable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties;
the purchase ororigination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects theincurred
credit losses.

3.11.5.5 Presentation ofimpairment of expected credit loss

In order to reflect the changes of credit risk of financial instrumentsince initial recognition,

the Company shall at each reporting date remeasure the expected credit loss and recognise

in profit orloss, asan impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses or
addition (orreversal). For financial asset at amortised cost, the loss allowance shall reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position; for debt
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance shall be
recognised in other comprehensiveincome and shall not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

3.11.5.6 Write-off

The Company shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the

Company has no reasonable expectations of recoveringthe contractual cash flow of a

financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Such write-off constitutes a derecognition

of the financial asset. This circumstance usually occurs when the Company determines that
the debtor has no assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flow to
repay the write-off amount.

Recovery of financial asset written off shall be recognised in profit or loss as reversal of

impairment loss.

3.11.6 Transfer of financial assets

Transfer of financial assets refers to following two situations:

* Transfersthe contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset;

* Transfers the entire or a part of a financial asset and retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

3.11.6.1 Derecognition of transferred assets

If the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
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financial asset, or neither transfers nor retainssubstantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset but has not retained control of the financial asset, the

financial asset shall be derecognised.

Whether the Company has retained control of the transferred asset depends on the

transferee’s ability to sell the asset. If the transferee has the practical ability to sell the

assetin its entiretytoan unrelated third partyandis able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without needingto impose additionalrestrictions on the transfer, the

Company has not retained control.

The Companyjudges whether the transfer of financial asset qualifies for derecognition

based on the substance of the transfer.

If the transfer of financial asset qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the difference

between the followingshall be recognised in profit or loss:

* The carryingamount of transferred financial asset;

* The sum of consideration received and the part derecognised of the cumulative
changes in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive income (The
financial assets involved in the transfer are classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income in accordance with Article 18 of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises - Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments).

If the transferred assetis a part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies

for derecognition, the previous carryingamount of the larger financial asset shall be

allocated between the part that continuesto be recognised (For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset shall be treated as a part that continues to be recognised) and the part that
is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

The difference between following two amounts shall be recognised in profit or loss:

* The carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) allocated to the part
derecognised;

* The sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised and part
derecognised of the cumulative changes in fair value previously recognised in other
comprehensive income (The financial assets involved in the transfer are classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance with

Article 18 of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises - Recognition and
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Measurement of Financial Instruments).
3.11.6.2 Continuinginvolvement in transferred assets
If the Company neither transfers nor retainssubstantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred asset, and retains control of the transferred asset, the Company
shall continue to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuinginvolvement
and also recognise an associated liability.
The extent of the Company’s continuinginvolvementin the transferred asset is the extent
to which it is exposed to changesin the value of the transferred asset.
3.11.6.3 Continuetorecognise the transferred assets
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred financial asset, the Company shall continue to recognise the transferred asset
in its entirety and the consideration received shall be recognised as a financial liability.
The financial asset and the associated financial liability shall not be offset. In subsequent
accounting period, the Company shall continuously recognise any income (gain) arising
from the transferred asset and any expense (loss) incurred on the associated liability.
3.11.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities shall be presented separately in the statement of
financial position and shallnot offset each other. When the following conditionsare met,
financial assets and financial liabilities shall be offset and the net amount presentedin the
statement of financial position:
The Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.
The Companyintends eitherto settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
In accountingfor a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the
Companyshall not offset the transferred asset with the associated liability.
3.11.8 Determination of fair value of financial instruments
Referto Note 3.10 for determination of financial assets and financial liabilities.
3.12 Fair Value Measurement
Fair value refers to the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera
liabilityin an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The Company determines fair value of the related assets and liabilitiesbased on market

valuein the principal market, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
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advantageous market price for the related asset or liability. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured usingthe assumptionsthat market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants actin their economic best
interest.

The principal market isthe market in which transactions for an asset or liability take place
with the greatest volume and frequency. The most advantageous market is the market
which maximizes the value that could be received from sellingthe asset and minimizes the
value which is needed to be paid in order to transfer a liability, considering the effect of
transport costs and transaction costs both.

If the active market of the financial asset or financial liability exists, the Company shall
measure the fair value usingthe quoted pricein the active market. If the active market of
the financial instrument is not available, the Company shall measure the fair value using
valuation techniques.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by usingthe assetin its highest and best use or by
sellingit to another market participantthat would use the asset in its highest and best use.
3.12.1 Valuation techniques

The Company uses valuationtechniques that are appropriatein the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, including the market approach,
the income approach, and the cost approach. The Company shall use valuationtechniques
consistent with one or more of those approaches to measure fair value. If multiple
valuation techniques are used to measure fair value, the results shall be evaluated
consideringthe reasonableness of the range of valuesindicated by those results. A fair
value measurementis the point within that range thatis most representative of fair value
in the circumstances.

When using the valuation technique, the Company shall give the priority to relevant
observableinputs. The unobservable inputscan only be used when relevant observable
inputs are not available or practically would not be obtained. Observable inputsrefer to
the information which is available from market and reflects the assumptions that market
participantswould use when pricingthe asset or liability. Unobservable Inputs refer to the
information which is not available from market and it has to be developed usingthe best

information available in the circumstances from the assumptions that market participants
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would use when pricingthe asset or liability.

3.12.2 Fair value hierarchy

To Company establishes a fair value hierarchy that categorises the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 inputs and second to the Level 2 inputs and the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assetsor liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are
inputs other than quoted pricesincluded within Level 1 that are observable forthe asset or
liability, either directly orindirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

3.13 Inventories

3.13.1 Classification of inventories

Inventories are finished goods or products held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
in the process of production for such sale, or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process orin the rendering of services, including raw
materials, work in progress, semi-finished goods, finished goods, low value consumption
goods, goods in transit, etc.

3.13.2 Measurement method of cost of inventories sold or used

The cost of inventories used or sold is determined on the weighted average basis.

3.13.3 Inventory system

The perpetual inventory systemis adopted. The inventories should be counted at least
once a year, and surplus or losses of inventory stocktaking shall be included in current
profitand loss.

3.13.4 Provision for impairment of inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The excess of cost over
net realizable value of the inventories is recognised as provision forimpairment of
inventory, and recognised in current profit or loss.

Net realizable value of the inventory should be determined on the basis of reliable
evidence obtained, and factors such as purpose of holdingthe inventory and impact of
post balance sheet event shall be considered.

3.13.4.1 The net realizable value of finished goods, products and materialsfor direct sale s

determined at estimated selling prices less estimated selling expenses and relevant taxes
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and surcharges in normal operation process. The net realizable value for inventories held
to execute sales contract or service contract is calculated on the basis of contract price. If
the quantities of inventories specified in sales contracts are less than the quantities held by
the Company, the netrealizable value of the excess portion ofinventories shall be based
on general selling prices. Net realizable value of materials held for sale shall be measured
based on market price.

3.13.4.2 For materialsin stock need to be processed, in the ordinary course of production
and business, netrealisable value is determined at the estimated selling price less the
estimated costs of completion, the estimated sellingexpenses and relevant taxes. If the
net realisable value of the finished products produced by such materialsis higher than the
cost, the materials shall be measured at cost; if a declinein the price of materialsindicates
that the cost of the finished products exceeds its net realisable value, the materials are
measured at net realisable value and differences shall be recognised at the provision for
impairment.

3.13.4.3 Provisions for inventoryimpairmentare generally determined on an individual
basis. For inventories with large quantity and low unit price, the provisions forinventory
impairment are determined on a category basis.

3.13.4.4 If any factor rendering write-downs of the inventories has been eliminated at the
reporting date, the amounts written down are recovered and reversed to the extent of the
inventory impairment, which has been provided for. The reversal shall be included in profit
or loss.

3.13.5 Amortisation method of low-value consumables

Low-value consumables: One-off writing off method is adopted.

Package material: One-off writing off method is adopted.

3.14 Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

The Company presents contract assets or contract liabilities in the balance sheetin
accordance with the relationship between performance obligations and customer
payments. The Company has the right to charge for the transfer of goods or services to
customers (and the right depends on factors other than the passage of time) are presented
as contract assets. The company's obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
customers for consideration received or receivable from customers are presented as

contract liabilities.
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Refer to Note 3.11 for the determination and accounting treatments of the company's
expected credit loss of contract assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilitiesare presented separately in the balance sheet.
Contract assets and contract liabilitiesunder the same contract are presented as net
amount. If the netted amount hasthe debit balance, thenitis reported as "contract
assets" or "other non-current assets" based oniits liquidity; if the netted amount has a
credit balance, itis listed in the item of "contract liabilities" or "other non-current
liabilities" based on its liquidity. Contract assets and contract liabilities under different
contracts shall not offset each other.

3.15 Contract Cost

Contract costs contain contract enforcement costs and contract acquisition costs.

The cost incurred by the Company for the enforcement of the contractis recognized as an
asset as the contract enforcement cost when the following conditionsare simultaneously
met:

3.15.1 The cost is directly related to a current or anticipated contract, including direct labor,
direct materials, manufacturing expenses (or similar expenses), costs clearly borne by the
customer, and other costs incurred solely due to the contract.

3.15.2 The cost increases the company's future resources for fulfilling contract
enforcement obligations.

3.15.3 The cost is expected to be recovered.

The incremental costincurred by the Companyin orderto obtain the contractis expected
to be recovered, and shall be recognized as an asset as the cost of obtainingthe contract.
Assets related to contract costs are amortised on the same basis as the revenue
recognition of goods or services related to the asset; however, if the amortisation period of
contract acquisition costs does not exceed one year, the Company will include the contract
costs inthe current profits and losses at occurrence.

If the book value of the assetsrelated to the contract cost is higher than the difference
between the following two items, the Company will make provision forimpairment of the
excess partand recognize it as an assetimpairment loss, and further consider whether to
withdraw losses related to the contract estimated liabilities:

3.15.3.1 The remaining consideration expected to be obtained due to the transfer of goods

or services related to the asset;
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3.15.3.2 Estimate the cost that will incur for the transfer of the related goods or services.

If the aforementioned asset impairment provisionis subsequently reversed, the book value
of the asset after the reversal shall not exceed the book value of the asset on the date of
reversal underthe assumption thatnoimpairment provision is made.

For the contract enforcement cost recognized as an asset, the amortisation period shall
not exceed one year or a normal business cycle atinitial recognition, and shall be
presentedinthe "inventory"item. The amortisation period exceeds one year or a normal
business cycle at the initial recognition, shallbe presented in “other non-current assets”.
The contract acquisition cost recognized as an asset shall be reported in "other current
assets" when the amortisation period does not exceed one year or one normal business
cycle at the time of initial recognition, and reportedin the item of "other non-current
assets" when the amortisation period exceeds one year or one normal business cycle at
the time of initial recognition.

3.16 Long-term Equity Investments

Long-term equity investments refer to equity investments where the Company has control
of, or significant influence over, an investee, as well as equity investments in joint ventures.
Associates of the Company are those entities over which the Company has significant
influence.

3.16.1 Determination basis of joint control or significant influence over the investee
Joint controlis the relevant agreed sharing of control over an arrangement, and the
arranged relevant activity must be decided under unanimous consent of the parties
sharingcontrol. In assessing whether the Company has joint control ofan arrangement,
the Company shall assess first whether all the parties, or a group of the parties, control the
arrangement. When all the parties, ora group of the parties, considered collectively, are
able to direct the activities of the arrangement, the parties control the arrangement
collectively. Then the Company shall assess whether decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively control the arrangement. If
two or more groups of the parties could control the arrangement collectively, it shall not
be assessed as have joint control of the arrangement. When assessingthe joint control, the
protectiverights are not considered.

Significantinfluenceis the power to participatein the financial and operating policy

decisions of the investee butis not control or joint control of those policies. In

53



Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. Notes to the financial statements

determination of significant influence over an investee, the Company should consider not
onlythe existingvotingrights directly or indirectly held but also the effect of potential
votingrights held by the Company and other entities that could be currently exercised or
converted, including the effect of share warrants, share options and convertible corporate
bondsthatissued by the investee and could be converted in current period.

If the Company holds, directly orindirectly 20% or more but less than 50% of the voting
power of the investee, itis presumed that the Company hassignificant influence of the
investee, unlessit can be clearly demonstrated thatin such circumstance, the Company
cannot participatein the decision-makingin the production and operating of the investee.
3.16.2 Determination of initial investment cost

3.16.2.1 Long-term equity investments generated in business combinations

For a business combination involving enterprisesunder common control, ifthe Company
makes paymentin cash, transfers non-cash assets, or bears liabilities as the consideration
for the business combination, the share of carrying amount of the owners’ equity of the
acquireein the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party is
recognised as the initial cost of the long-term equity investment on the combination date.
The difference between theinitial investment cost and the carrying amount of cash paid,
non-cash assets transferred, and liabilitiesassumed shall be adjusted againstthe capital
reserve; if capital reserve is not enough to be offset, undistributed profit shall be offsetin
turn.

For a business combination involving enterprisesunder common control, ifthe Company
issues equity securities as the consideration for the business combination, the share of
carrying amount of the owners’ equity of the acquiree in the consolidated financial
statements of the ultimate controlling partyis recognised as the initial cost of the long-
term equity investment on the combination date. The total par value of the sharesissued
is recognised as the share capital. The difference between the initial investmentcost and
the carrying amount of the total parvalue of the sharesissued shall be adjusted against
the capital reserve; if capital reserve is not enough to be offset, undistributed profit shall
be offset in turn.

For business combination not under common control, the assets paid, liabilitiesincurred or
assumed, and the fair value of equity securities issued to obtain the control of the acquiree

at the acquisition date shall be determined as the cost of the business combinationand
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recognised as the initial cost of the long-term equity investment. The audit, legal, valuation
and advisory fees, otherintermediary fees, and other relevant general administrative costs
incurred for the business combination, shall be recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
3.16.2.2 For long-term equity investments acquired not through the business combination,
the investment cost shall be determined based on the following requirements:

For long-term equity investments acquired by paymentsin cash, the initial costis the
actually paid purchase cost, including the expenses, taxes and other necessary
expenditures directly related to the acquisition of long-term equity investments.

For long-term equity investments acquired through issuance of equity securities, the initial
cost is the fairvalue of the issued equity securities.

For the long-term equity investments obtained through exchange of non-monetary assets,
if the exchange has commercial substance, and the fair values of assets traded out and
tradedin can be measured reliably, theinitial cost of long-term equity investment traded
in with non-monetary assets are determined based on the fair values of the assets traded
out together with relevant taxes. Difference between fair value and book value of the
assets traded outis recorded in current profit or loss. If the exchange of non-monetary
assets does not meet the above criterion, the book value of the assets traded out and
relevant taxes are recognised as the initial investment cost.

For long-term equity investment acquired through debt restructuring, the book valueis
determined based on the fair value of waived debts and the taxes and other costs directly
attributable to the assets. Difference between fair value and carrying amount of waived
debts shall be recorded in current profit or loss.

3.16.2.3 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

Long-term equity investment to an entity over which the Company has ability of control
shall be accounted for at cost method. Long-term equity investmentto a joint venture or
an associate shall be accounted for at equity method.

3.16.2.3.1 Cost method

For Long-term equity investment at cost method, cost of the long-term equity investment
shall be adjusted when additional amountisinvested ora part of it is withdrawn. The
Company recognises its share of cash dividends or profits which have been declared to
distribute by the investee as current investmentincome.

3.16.2.3.2 Equity method

55



Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. Notes to the financial statements

For Long-term equity investment recognised at equity method, cost of the long-term
equityinvestment shall be recognized based on the following conditions:

If theinitial cost of the investment s in excess of the share of the fair value of the net
identifiable assets in the investee at the date of investment, the difference shall not be
adjusted to the initial cost of long-term equity investment; if the initial cost of the
investmentisin short of the share of the fair value of the netidentifiable assetsinthe
investee at the date investment, the difference shall be included in the current profit or

loss and the initial cost of the long-term equity investment shall be adjusted accordingly.

The Company recognises the share of the investee’s net profits or losses, as well as its
share of the investee’s other comprehensive income, as investmentincome or losses and
other comprehensive income respectively, and adjusts the carrying amount of the
investment accordingly. The carrying amount of the investment shall be reduced by the
share of any profit or cash dividends declared to distribute by the investee. The investor’s
share of the investee’s owners’ equity changes, other than those arisingfrom the
investee’s net profit or loss, other comprehensive income, or profit distribution, shall be
recognised in theinvestor’s equity, and the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment shall be adjusted accordingly. The Company recognises its share of the
investee’s net profits or losses after making appropriate adjustmentsofinvestee’s net
profit based on the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the investment
date. If the accounting policy and accounting period adopted by the investeeis notin
consistency with the Company, the financial statements of the investee shall be adjusted
according to the Company’s accounting policies and accounting period, based on which,
investmentincome or loss and other comprehensive income, etc., shall be adjusted. The
unrealized profits or losses resulting from inter-company transactions between the
company and its associate or joint venture are eliminated in proportion to the company’s
equityinterestin the investee, based on which investmentincome or losses shall be
recognised. Any losses resulting from inter-company transactions between the investor
and the investee, which belongto asset impairment, shall be recognised in full.

Where the Company obtains the power of joint control or significant influence, but not
control, over theinvestee, due to additional investment or other reason, therelevantlong-
term equity investment shall be accounted for by using the equity method, initial cost of
which shall be the fair value of the original investment plus the additional investment.
Where the original investment s classified as other equity instrument investment, the

difference between the fair value and the book value, as well as the accumulated gains or
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losses previously recorded in other comprehensive income, shall be transferred out of
other comprehensiveincome, and recognized into retained earnings in the current period
when the equity method is adopted.

If the Company loses the joint control or significantinfluence of the investee for some
reasons such as disposal of equity investment, the retained interest shall be measured at
fair value and the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date of
loss the joint control or significant influence shall be recognised in profit or loss. When the
Companydiscontinues the use of the equity method, the Company shall account for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensiveincome under equity method in
relation to thatinvestment on the same basis as would have been required if the investee
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

3.16.2.4 Methods of impairment and provisionforimpairment

The assetimpairment method for the investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and joint
venturesis shown in Note 3.20.

3.17 Investment Property

3.17.1 Classification of investment properties

Investment properties are properties to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,

including:
3.17.1.1 Land use right leased out

3.17.1.2 Land held for transfer upon appreciation

3.17.1.3 Buildings leased out

3.17.2 The measurement model of investment property

The Company adopts the cost model for subsequent measurementofinvestment
properties. Referto Note 3.22 for provision forimpairment.

The Company calculates the depreciation oramortisation based on the netamount of
investment property cost less the accumulated impairment and the net residual value
using straight-line method. Investment propertyis depreciated or amortised in accordance
with the policy consistent with that of buildings or land use rights.

3.18 Fixed Assets

Fixed assets refer to the tangible assets with higher unit price held for the purpose of
producingcommodities, rendering services, renting or business management with useful
lives exceeding one year.

3.18.1 Recognition criteria of fixed assets
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Fixed assets will only be recognised at the actual cost paid when obtainingas all the
followingcriteria are satisfied:

3.18.1.1 It is probable that the economicbenefits relating to the fixed assets will flow into
the Company;

3.18.1.2 The costs of the fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure for fixed assets shall be recorded in cost of fixed assets, if
recognition criteria of fixed assets are satisfied, otherwise the expenditure shall be
recorded in current profit orloss when incurred.

3.18.2 Depreciation methods of fixed assets

The Company begins to depreciate the fixed asset from the next month after it is available
for intended use usingthe straight-line-method. The estimated useful lifeand annual
depreciation rates which are determined accordingto the categories, estimated economic

useful lives, and estimated net residual rates of fixed assets are listed as followings:

Depreciation Residual Estimated useful | Annual depreciation
Category
method rates (%) life (year) rates (%)
Buildings and Straight-line
7.00-10.00 20 4.50-4.65
constructions method
Machinery equipment |[Straight-line method 0.00 5-15 6.67-20.00
Electrical equipment,
Straight-line method 0.00 5-6 16.67-20.00
molde, and other
Vehicles Straight-line method 0.00 6 16.67
Improvement Amortisation shall be made according to
expenditure of leased |Straight-line method 0.00 the shorter of benefit period and lease
fixed assets period

For the fixed assets with impairment provided, the impairment provision should be
excluded from the cost when calculating depreciation.

The Company reviews the useful life, estimated net residual value and depreciation
method of the fixed assets. Estimated useful life of the fixed assets shall be adjusted ifit is
changed compared to the original estimation.

3.19 Constructionin Progress

3.19.1 Classification of construction in progress

Constructionin progress is measured on an individual project basis.

3.19.2 Recognition criteria and timing of transfer from construction in progress to fixed
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assets

The initial book values of the fixed assets are stated at total expendituresincurred before
they are readyfor their intended use, including construction costs, original price of
machinery equipment, other necessary expensesincurred to bringthe constructionin
progress to get ready for itsintended use and borrowing costs of the specific loan for the
construction orthe proportion of the general loan used for the constructionsincurred
before they are ready for theirintended use. The construction in progress shall be
transferred to fixed asset when the installation or constructionis ready for the intended
use. For construction in progress that has been ready for their intended use but relevant
budgets for the completion of projects have not been completed, the estimated values of
project budgets, prices, or actual costs should beincluded in the costs of relevant fixed
assets, and depreciation shouldbe provided accordingto relevant policies of the Company
when the fixed assets are ready for intended use. Afterthe completion of budgets needed
for the completion of projects, the estimated values should be substituted by actual costs,
but depreciation already provided is not adjusted.

3.20 Borrowing Costs

3.20.1 Recognition criteria and period for capitalization of borrowing costs

The Company shall capitalize the borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets when meet the following
conditions:

3.20.1.1 Expendituresforthe asset are beingincurred;

3.20.1.2 Borrowing costs are beingincurred, and;

3.20.1.3 Acquisition, construction, or production activities thatare necessary to prepare
the assets fortheir intended use or sale are in progress.

Other borrowingcost, discounts or premiums on borrowings and exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings shall be recognized into current profit or loss when incurred.
Capitalization of borrowing costsis suspended during periodsin which the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifyingasset isinterrupted abnormally and the
interruption is fora continuous period of more than 3 months.

Capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the qualifyingassets beingacquired,
constructed, or produced become ready for theirintended use orsale. The expenditure

incurred subsequently shallbe recognised as expenses when incurred.

59



Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. Notes to the financial statements

3.20.2 Capitalization rate and measurement of capitalized amounts of borrowing costs
When funds are borrowed specifically for purchase, construction, or manufacturing of
assets eligible for capitalization, the Company shall determine the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
duringthe period less anyinterestincome on bank deposit orinvestmentincome onthe
temporaryinvestment of those borrowings.

Where funds allocated for purchase, construction or manufacturing of assets eligible for
capitalization are part of a general borrowing, the eligible amounts are determined by the
weighted-average of the cumulative capital expenditures in excess of the specific
borrowing multiplied by the general borrowing capitalization rate. The capitalization rate
will be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the general borrowing.

3.21 Intangible Assets

3.21.1 Measurement method of intangible assets
Intangible assets are recognised at actual cost at acquisition.
3.21.2 The useful life and amortisation of intangible assets

3.21.2.1 The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets with finite useful lives are as

follows:
Category Estimated useful life Basis
Land use right 50 years Legal right of use
The service life is determined by reference to the
Software 5 years period that can bring economic benefits to the

Company
For intangible assets with finite useful life, the estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed annually at the end of each reporting period and adjusted when
necessary. No change has incurred in current year in the estimated useful life and

amortisation method upon review.

3.21.2.2 Assets of which the period to bring economic benefits to the Company are
unforeseeable are regarded as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The Company
reassesses the useful lives of those assets at every year end. If the useful lives of those assets
are still indefinite, impairment test should be performed on those assets at the balance sheet
date.
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3.21.2.3 Amortisation of the intangible assets

For intangible assets with finite useful lives, their useful lives should be determined upon
their acquisition and systematically amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful life.
The amortisation amount shall be recognised into current profit or loss according to the
beneficial items. The amount to be amortised is cost deducting residual value. For intangible
assets which has impaired, the cumulative impairment provision shall be deducted as well.
The residual value of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be assumed to be zero
unless: there is a commitment by a third party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful
life; or there is an active market for the asset and residual value can be determined by
reference to that market; and it is probable that such a market will exist at the end of the

asset’s useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortised. The Company
reassesses the useful lives of those assets at every year end. If there is evidence to indicate
that the useful lives of those assets become finite, the useful lives shall be estimated and the
intangible assets shall be amortised systematically and reasonably within the estimated

useful lives.
3.21.3 Scope of Researchand Development(R&D) expenditure Classification

The Company classifies all costs directly related to the conduct of research and development
activities as research and development expenses, including research and development
employee compensation, depreciation and amortisation expenses, testing expenses,

maintenance expenses, patent fees and other expenses.

3.21.4 Criteria of classifying expenditures on internal research and development
projects into research phase and development phase

3.21.4.1 Preparation activities related to materials and other relevant aspects undertaken by
the Company for the purpose of further development shall be treated as research phase.
Expenditures incurred during the research phase of internal research and development

projects shall be recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

3.21.4.2 Development activities after the research phase of the Company shall be treated as
development phase.

3.21.5 Criteria for capitalization of qualifying expenditures during the development

phase
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Expenditures arising from development phase on internal research and development projects

shall be recognised as intangible assets only if all of the following conditions have been met:

3.21.4.1 Technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that they will be

available for use or sale;
3.21.4.2 Its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

3.21.4.3 The method that the intangible assets generate economic benefits, including the
Company can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible assets or
the intangible assets themselves or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the

intangible assets;

3.21.4.4 The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the

development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

3.21.4.5 Its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset.

3.22 Impairment of Long-Term Assets

Impairment loss of long-term equity investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, investment properties, fixed assets and constructions in progress subsequently
measured at cost, productive biological assets, intangible assets, goodwill, the rights and
interests of proved mining areas of petroleum and natural gas and wells and other relevant
facilities measured at cost (excludinginventories, investment properties measured at fair
value, deferred tax assets, financial assets), shall be determined accordingto following
method:

The Company shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether thereis any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company shall
estimate the recoverable amount of the asset and test for impairment. Irrespective of
whetherthere is any indication ofimpairment, the Company shall test forimpairment of
goodwill acquired in a business combination, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
orintangible assets not yet available for use annually.

The recoverable amounts of the long-term assets are the higher of their fair values less
costs to dispose and the present values of the estimated future cash flows of the long-term
assets. The Company estimate the recoverable amounts on anindividual basis. If it is

difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company
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estimates the recoverable amount of the groups of assets that the individual asset belongs
to. Identification of a group of assetis based on whether the cash inflows from it are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

If, and onlyif, the recoverable amount of an asset or a group of assetsis less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable
amount and the provision forimpairment loss shall be recognised accordingly.

The mentioned impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequentaccounting period once

it had been recognised.

3.23 Long-term Deferred Expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are various expenses already incurred, which shall be
amortised over current and subsequent periods with the amortisation period exceeding
one year. Long-term deferred expenses are amortized on a straight-line basis duringthe
expected benefit period.

3.24 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or compensation given by the
Companyin exchange for service rendered by employees or for the termination of
employment relationship. Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term employee benefits.
Benefits provided to an employee's spouse, children, dependents, family members of
decreased employees, or other beneficiaries are also employee benefits.

Accordingto liquidity, employee benefits are presentedin the statement of financial
position as “Employee benefits payable” and “Long-term employee benefits payable”.
3.24.1 Short-term employee benefits

3.24.1.1 Employee basicsalary (salary, bonus, allowance, subsidy)

The Company recognises, in the accounting period in which an employee provides service,
actually occurred short-term employee benefits as a liability, with a corresponding charge
to current profit except for those recognised as capital expenditure based on the
requirement of accounting standards.

3.24.1.2 Employee welfare

The Company shall recognise the employee welfare based on actualamount when incurred

into current profit or loss or related capital expenditure. Employee welfare shall be
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measured at fair value if it is a non-monetary benefits.

3.24.1.3 Social insurance such as medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housingfunds, laborunion fund and employee education fund

Payments made by the Company of social insurance foremployees, such as medical
insurance, work injury insurance and maternity insurance, payments of housingfunds, and
labor union fund and employee education fund accrued in accordance with relevant
requirements, in the accounting period in which employees provide services, is calculated
accordingto required accrual bases and accrual ratio in determiningthe amount of
employee benefits and the related liabilities, which shall be recognised in current profit or
loss or the cost of relevant asset.

3.24.1.4 Short-term paid absences

The company shall recognise the related employee benefits arising from accumulating paid
absences when the employees render service thatincreases their entitlement to future
paid absences. The additional payable amounts shallbe measured at the expected
additional payments as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated. The
Companyshall recognise relevantemployee benefit of non-accumulating paid absences
when the absences actually occurred.

3.24.1.5 Short-term profit-sharing plan

The Companyshall recognise the related employee benefits payable under a profit-sharing
plan when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

3.24.1.5.1 The Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such
payments as a result of past events;

3.24.1.5.2 A reliable estimate of the amounts of employee benefits obligation arising from
the profit-sharingplan can be made.

3.24.2 Post-employment benefits

3.24.2.1 Defined contribution plans

The Company shall recognise, in the accounting period in which an employee provides
service, the contribution payableto a defined contribution plan as a liability, with a
corresponding charge to the current profit or loss or the cost of a relevant asset.

When contributions to a defined contribution plan are not expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees

render the related service, they shall be discounted usingrelevantdiscount rate (market
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yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds in active market
or government bonds with the currency and term which shall be consistentwith the
currency and estimated term of the defined contribution obligations) to measure employee
benefits payable.

3.24.2.2 Defined benefit plan

3.24.2.2.1 The present value of defined benefit obligation and current service costs

Based on the expected accumulative welfare unit method, the Company shallmake
estimates about demographicvariables and financial variables in adopting the unbiased
and consistent actuarial assumptions and measure defined benefit obligation, and
determine the obligation period. The Company shall discount the obligation arisingfrom
defined benefit plan usingrelevant discountrate (market yields at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds in active market or government bonds with the
currency and term which shall be consistentwith the currency and estimated term of the
defined benefit obligations) in order to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the current service cost.

3.24.2.2.2 The net defined benefit liability or asset

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the deficit or surplus recognised as the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets.

When the Company hasasurplusin a defined benefit plan, it shall measure the net defined
benefit asset at the lower of the surplusin the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling.
3.24.2.2.3 Theamount recognised in the cost of asset or current profit or loss

Service cost comprises current service cost, past service cost and any gain or loss on
settlement. Other service cost shall be recognised in profit orloss unless accounting
standards require orallowtheinclusion of current service cost within the cost of assets.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability orasset comprisinginterestincome on plan
assets, interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling, shall beincluded in profit or loss.

3.24.2.2.4 Theamount recognised in other comprehensiveincome

Changesinthe net liability or asset of the defined benefit plan resulting from the
remeasurementsincluding:

* Actuarial gains and losses, which are the changes in the present value of the defined

benefit obligation resulting from experience adjustments or the effects of changes in
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actuarial assumptions;
* Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability or asset;
* Anychange in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability or asset recognised in other
comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to profit or lossin a subsequent period.
However, the Company may transfer those amounts recognised in other comprehensive
income within equity.
3.24.3 Termination benefits
The Company providing termination benefits to employees shall recognise an employee
benefits liability for termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to the profit orloss
of the reporting period, at the earlier of the following dates:
3.24.3.1 When the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits
because of an employment termination plan ora curtailment proposal.
3.24.3.2 When the Company recognises costs or expenses related to a restructuringthat
involves the payment of termination benefits.
If the termination benefits are not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
afterthe end of the annual reporting period, the Company shall discount the termination
benefits usingrelevant discount rate (market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds in active market or government bonds with the currency and
term which shall be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the defined benefit
obligations) to measure the employee benefits.
3.24.4 Other long-term employee benefits
3.24.4.1 Meet the conditions of the defined contribution plan
When other long-term employee benefits provided by the Company to the employees
satisfies the conditionsfor classifying as a defined contribution plan, all those benefits
payable shall be accounted for as employee benefits payable at their discounted value.
3.24.4.2 Meet the conditions of the defined benefit plan
At the end of the reporting period, the Company recognised the cost of employee benefit
from otherlong-term employee benefits as the following components:

e Service costs;
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* Netinterest cost for net liability or asset of other long-term employee benefits

* Changes resulting from the remeasurements of the net liability or asset of other long-
term employee benefits

In order to simplify the accountingtreatment, the netamount of above items shall be

recognised in profit or loss or relevant cost of assets.

3.25 Estimated Liabilities

3.25.1 Recognition criteria of estimated liabilities

The Company recognises the estimated liabilities when obligations related to contingencies

satisfy all the following conditions:

3.25.1.1 Thatobligationisa current obligation of the Company;

3.25.1.2 It is likely to cause any economic benefit to flow out of the Company as a result of

performance of the obligation; and

3.25.1.3 The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

3.25.2 Measurement method of estimated liabilities

The estimated liabilities of the Company are initially measured at the best estimate of

expenses required for the performance of relevant present obligations. The Company,

when determiningthe best estimate, has had a comprehensive consideration of risks with

respect to contingencies, uncertainties, and the time value of money. The carrying amount

of the estimated liabilities shall be reviewed at the end of every reporting period. If

conclusive evidence indicates that the carrying amount fails to be the best estimate of the

estimated liabilities, the carrying amount shall be adjusted based on the updated best

estimate.

3.26 Revenue recognition principle and measurement

3.26.1 General principle

Revenueis the total inflow of economic benefits formed in the company's daily activities

that will increase shareholders' equity and does not relate to the capital invested by

shareholders.

The Company has fulfilled the performance obligation in the contract, that is, the revenue

is recognised when the customer obtains the control right of relevant goods. To obtain the

control right of the relevant commodity meansto be able to dominate the use of the

commodity and obtain almost all the economic benefits from it.

If there are two or more performance obligationsin the contract, the Company will
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allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation based on therelative
proportionofthe separate selling price of the goods or services promised by each
performance obligation on the start date of the contract, and measure the income based
on the transaction price allocated to each single performance obligation.

The transaction price refersto the amount of consideration that the Company is expected
to be entitled to receive due to the transfer of goods or services to customers, excluding
payments collected on behalf of third parties. When determining the transaction price of
the contract, the Company determines the transaction price according to the terms of the
contractand in combination with its historical practices. When determining the transaction
price, the Companytakesinto account theinfluence of variable considerations, significant
financingelementsin the contract, the non-cash considerations, the considerations
payable to customers and other factors. The Company determines the transaction price
includingvariable consideration atan amount that does not exceed the amount at which
the accumulated recognized income is unlikely to have a significant reversal when the
relevant uncertaintyis eliminated. If there is a significant financingcomponentin the
contract, the Company will determine the transaction price based on the amount payable
in cash when the customer obtains the control right of the commodity. The difference
between the transaction price and the contract consideration will be amortised by the
effective interest method duringthe contract period. If the interval between the control
right transfer and the customer's paymentis less than one year, the company will not
consider the financingcomponent.

If one of the following conditionsis met, the performance obligation shall be fulfilled
within a certain period of time; otherwise, the performance obligation shallbe fulfilled at a
certain point of time:

3.26.1.1 The customer obtains and consumes the economic benefits brought by the
Company's fulfillment of contract when the Company performs the obligations;

3.26.1.2 The customer can control the commodities under constructionduringthe
Company's execution of the contract;

3.26.1.3 The commodities produced by the Company during the performance of the
contract have irreplaceable uses, and the Company hastheright to collect payment for the
cumulative performance part that has been completed so far duringthe entire contract

period.
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For performance obligations fulfilled within a certain period of time, the Company
recognises revenue in accordance with the performance progress duringthat period,
except where the performance progress cannot be reasonably determined. The Company
determines the progress of the performance of services in accordance with the input
method (or output method). When the progress of the contract performance cannot be
reasonably determined, if the cost incurred by the Companyis expected to be
compensated, therevenue shall be recognised accordingto the amount of the cost
incurred until the progress of the contract performance can be reasonably determined.
For performance obligations fulfilled at a certain pointin time, the Company recognises
revenue at the point when the customer obtains control of the relevant commodities. The
Company considers the following signs when judgingwhether a customer has obtained
control of goods or services:

3.26.1.4 The Company has the current right to receive payment for the goods or services,
thatis, the customer hasthe current obligationto pay for the goods;

3.26.1.5 The Company has transferred the legal ownership of the goods to the customer,
thatis, the customer has the legal ownership of the goods;

3.26.1.6 The Company has transferred the goods in kind to the customer, thatis, the
customer has possessed the goods in kind;

3.26.1.7 The company has transferred the main risks and rewards of the ownership of the
goodsto the customers, that s, the customers have obtained the main risks and rewards
of the ownership of the goods;

3.26.1.8 The customer has accepted the goods or services.

3.26.2 Specific methods

The specific methods of the Company's revenue recognition are as follows:

3.26.2.1 Commodity sales contract

The sales contract between the Company and the customerincludes the performance
obligation of transferring the goods, which belongs to the performance obligationata
certain pointintime.

Recognition of domesticsales product revenue must meet the following conditions: the
Company has delivered the products to the customer according to the contract and the

customer has accepted the products; the payment has been recovered or the receipt of

payment has been obtained, and the relevant economic benefits are likely to flow in; the
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main risks and rewards of the ownership of the goods have been transferred, and the legal

ownership ofthe goods has been transferred.

Recognition of exporting revenue must meet the following conditions: The Company
recognizes revenue for exporting goods based on the sales contracts or sales orders,
regardless of the sales model adopted.

The Company has shipped the products accordingto the contract and gone through the
customs declaration and export procedures; the payment for goods has been recovered or
the receipt has been obtained, and the relevant economicbenefits are likely to flow in; the
main risks and rewards of the ownership of the goods have been transferred, and the legal

ownership ofthe goods has been transferred.

Treatment of sales return:according to the general rules of international trade, the
adoption of FOB and CIF settlement indicates that the buyer has accepted the purchased
goods at the place of shipment, and the relevant risks have been undertaken by the buyer
after the acceptance and shipment. Therefore, the Company does not make provision for
the above matters separately, but directly records them into the profits and lossesin the
current period.

Processing of product claims: the estimated claim expense rate is calculated based on the
actual claim amountin the past two years (excluding special claims) as a percentage of the
annual salesrevenue, and accrued at period end based on the current salesrevenue and
the estimated claim expense rate to recognize the claim expenses for products sold in the
current period.

3.26.2.2 Service contract

The performance obligation of the service contract between the Company and the
customer. Since the customer obtainsand consumes the economicbenefits brought by the
Company’s performance at the same time as the Company fulfills the contract, the
Company recognises it as a performance obligation performed within a certain period of
time, and amortized equally during the service provision period.

3.26.2.3 Construction contract

For the performance obligation of the construction contract between the Companyand
the customer, since the customer can control the goods under construction in the process
of the Company's performance, the Company takes it as the performance obligation to
performin a certain period of time, and recognizes theincome accordingto the

performance progress, except that the performance progress cannot be reasonably
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determined. The Company determines the progress of the performance of providing
services in accordance with the output method. The progress of the performance shall be
determined accordingto the proportion ofthe completed contract workload to the
expected total contract workload. On the balance sheet date, the Company re-estimates
the progress of completed performance or completed services to reflect the changesin

performance.
3.27 Government Grants

3.27.1 Recognition of government grants

A government grant shall not be recognized until there is reasonable assurance that:
3.27.1.1 The Company will comply with the conditions attachingto them; and

3.27.1.2 The grants will be received.

3.27.2 Measurement of government grants

Monetary grants from the government shall be measured at amount received or receivable.
The non-monetary grants from the government shall be measured at their fair value or at
the nominal value of CNY 1.00 when reliable fair value is not available.

3.27.3 Accounting for government grants

3.27.3.1 Government grants related to assets

Government grants pertinent to assets mean the government grants that are obtained by
the Company used for purchase or construction, or forming the long-term assets by other
ways. The government subsidies related to assets offset the book value of related assets,
and shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful lives of the
relevant assets. Grants measured at theirnominal value shall be directly recognised in
profit or loss of the period when the grants are received. When the relevant assets are sold,
transferred, written off or damaged before the assets are terminated, the remaining
deferred income shall be transferred into profit or loss of the period of disposingrelevant
assets.

3.27.3.2 Government grants related to income

Government grants not related to assets are classified as government grants related to
income. Government grants related toincome are accounted for in accordance with the
followingcriteria:

If the government grants related toincome are used to compensate the enterprise’s

relevant expenses or losses in future periods, such government grants shall be recognised
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as deferred income andincluded into profit orlossin the same period as the relevant
expensesor losses are recognised;

If the government grants related to income are used to compensate the enterprise’s
relevant expenses or losses incurred, such government grants are directly recognised into
current profit or loss (or write down related expenses).

For government grants comprised of part related to assets as well as part related to
income, each partis accounted for separately;ifit is difficult to identify different parts, the
government grants are accounted for as government grants related to income as a whole.
Government grants related to daily operation activitiesare recognised in otherincome in
accordance with the nature of the activities, and government grantsirrelevant to daily
operation activitiesare recognised in non-operatingincome.

3.27.3.3 Repayment of the government grants

Repayment of the government grants shall be recorded by increasing the carrying amount
of the asset if the book value of the asset has been written down, or reducing the balance
of relevant deferred income if deferred income balance exists, any excess will be
recognised into current profit or loss; or directly recognised into current profit or loss for
othercircumstances.

3.28 Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
in the statement of financial position and its tax base at the balance sheet date. The
Company recognise and measure the effect of taxable temporary differences and
deductible temporary differences on income tax as deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets using liability method. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesshall not be
discounted.

3.28.1 Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised for deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax losses and the carryforward of unused tax credits to the extent
thatit is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax losses and the carryforward of
unused tax credits can be utilised at the tax rates that are expected to applyto the period
when the asset is realized, unless the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition

of an asset or liabilityin a transaction that:
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* |snotabusinesscombination;and
* At the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss)
The Company shall recognise a deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences
arisingfrom investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures, only to the extent
that, it is probable that:
* Thetemporarydifference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
* Taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised.
At the end of each reporting period, if thereis sufficient evidence that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilized, the Company recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. The Company shall reduce the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the
extentthatitis nolonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction shall
be reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficienttaxable profit will be
available.
3.28.2 Recognition of deferred tax liabilities
A deferred tax liability shallbe recognised for all taxable temporary differences at the tax
rate that are expected to apply to the period when the liabilityis settled.
3.28.2.1 No deferred tax liability shall be recognised for taxable temporary differences
arisingfrom:
* The initial recognition of goodwill; or
* The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which: is not a
business combination; and at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nortax loss.
3.28.2.2 An entity shall recognise a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures,
except tothe extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied:
* The Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary

difference; and
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* |t is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

3.28.3 Recognition of deferred tax liabilities or assets involved in special transactions

or events
3.28.3.1 Deferred tax liabilities or assets related to business combination
For the taxable temporary difference or deductible temporary difference arisingfrom a
business combination not under common control, a deferred tax liability or a deferred tax
asset shall be recognised, and simultaneously, goodwill recognised in the business
combinationshall be adjusted based on relevant deferred tax expense (orincome).
3.28.3.2 Items directly recognised in equity
Currenttaxand deferred tax related to items that are recognised directly in equity shall be
recognised in equity. Such items include: other comprehensiveincome generated from fair
value fluctuation of available for sale investments; an adjustment to the openingbalance
of retained earnings resulting from either a change in accounting policy thatis applied
retrospectively or the correction of a prior period (significant) error; amounts arisingon
initial recognition of the equity component ofa compound financial instrumentthat
contains both liability and equity component.
3.28.3.3 Unused tax losses and unused tax credits
3.28.3.3.1 Unsused tax losses and unused tax credits generated from daily operation of the
Company itself
Deductible lossrefers to the loss calculated and permitted accordingto the requirement of
tax law that can be offset against taxable incomein future periods. The criteria for
recognising deferred tax assets arisingfrom the carryforward of unused tax losses and tax
credits are the same as the criteria for recognising deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences. The Company recognises a deferred tax asset arising
from unused tax losses or tax credits only to the extent that thereis convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised by the Company. Income taxes in current profit or loss
shall be deducted as well.
3.28.3.3.2 Unsused tax losses and unused tax credits arising from business combination
Under a business combination, the acquiree’s deductible temporary differences which do

not satisfy the criteria at the acquisition date for recognition of deferred tax asset shall not
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be recognised. Within 12 months after the acquisition date, if new informationregarding
the facts and circumstances exists at the acquisition date and the economicbenefit of the
acquiree’s deductible temporary differences at the acquisition is expected to be realised,
the Company shall recognise acquired deferred tax benefits and reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill related to this acquisition. If goodwill is reduced to zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits shall be recognised in profit or loss. All other acquired
deferred tax benefits realised shall be recognised in profit or loss.

3.28.3.4 Temporary difference generated in consolidation elimination

When preparing consolidated financial statements, if temporary difference between
carrying value of the assets and liabilitiesin the consolidated financial statements and their
taxable basesis generated from elimination of inter-company unrealized profit or loss,
deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities shall be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, and income taxes expense in current profit or loss shall be adjusted
as well except for deferred tax related to transactions or events recognised directly in
equity and business combination.

3.28.3.5 Share-based payment settled by equity

If tax authority permits tax deductionthat relates to share-based payment, during the
period in which the expenses are recognised accordingto the accountingstandards, the
Company estimates the tax basein accordance with available information at the end of the
accounting period and the temporary difference arising from it. Deferred tax shall be
recognised when criteria of recognition are satisfied. If the amount of estimated future tax
deduction exceeds the amount of the cumulative expenses related to share-based
payment recognised accordingto the accounting standards, the tax effect of the excess

amountshall berecognised directly in equity.

3.28.4 The basis for presentation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities on a

net way

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented net of offsets when all the

following conditions are met:

The Company has a legal right to settle currentincome tax assets and current income tax

liabilities on a net basis;

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
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authority on the same taxableentity or on different taxable entities, butin each future
period in which deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities of significance are reversed,
the taxable entities involvedintend to settle currentincome tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis, orto realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.29 Leases

3.29.1 Identification of a lease

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contractis, or contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time,
the Company assesses whether, throughoutthe period of use, the customer has the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset

3.29.2 Identification of separate leases

If a contract contains multiple separate leases, the Company divides the contract and
perform separate accountingtreatment for each separate lease. The right to usean
identified asset is a separate lease component if simultaneously:

a) the lessee can benefit from use of the asset either on its own or together with other
resources that are readily available to the lessee; and

b) the assetis neither highly dependent on, nor highly interrelated with, other assetsin the
contract.

3.29.3 Accounting treatment of a lease in which the Company is the lessee

On its commencement date, the Company recognizes a lease that has a lease term of 12
months or less and does not contain a purchase option as a short-termlease, and
recognizes a lease for which the underlyingasset is of low value when it is brand new as a
lease of a low-value asset. If the Company subleases an asset leased, or expects to
sublease an asset leased, the head lease does not qualify as a lease of a low-value asset.
For short-term leases and leases of a low-value asset, the Company chooses not to
recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and to, within the lease term,
recognize such leasesin the costs of relevant assets or profit or loss for the current period.

Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, which are treated usinga
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simplified approach, for each lease, the Company recognizes the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilitieson the commencement date of the lease term.

a) Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset refers to the lessee's right to use the leased asset duringthe lease
term.

On the commencement date of the lease term, a right-of-use asset s initially measured at
cost. The cost comprises:

A.the amount of the initial measurementof the lease liability;

B. any lease payments made on or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

C. any initial direct costsincurred by the lessee; and

D. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantlingand removingthe
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoringthe underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company
recognizes and measures the costs according to the recognition standard and
measurement method applicable to expected liabilities. Costs that are incurred to produce

inventories areincluded into the cost of inventories.

The right-of-use asset shall be depreciated accordingto the categories using straight-line
method (or units of production method, double declining balance method and sum of the
years digit method). If it is reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlying asset
shall be transferredto the lessee by the end of the lease term, the depreciation rate shall
be determined based on the classification of the right-of- use asset and estimated residual
value rate from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying
asset. Otherwise, the depreciation rate shallbe determined based on the classification of
the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful

life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The depreciation method, estimated useful life, residual rates and annual depreciation
rates which are determined accordingto the categories of right-of-use asset are listed as

followings:

Depreciation Estimated useful Residual Annual depreciation
Category
method life (year) rates (%) rates (%)
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Depreciation Estimated useful Residual Annual depreciation
Category
method life (year) rates (%) rates (%)
Buildings and
straight-line basis Lease period - -

constructions

b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities shall be initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
which have not been made by the lease commencement date. Lease paymentsinclude:

A. fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

B. variable lease payments that depend onanindex or a rate;

C. the exercise price of a purchase optionifthe lesseeis reasonably certain to exercise that
option;

D. payments of penalties for terminatingthe lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercisingan option to terminate the lease; and

E. amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees provided by the lessee.
When the presentvalue of lease paymentsis calculated, the lease paymentsare
discounted usingtheinterest rate implicitin the lease, or, if that rate can be determined,
usingthe Company'sincremental borrowingrate / the loan interest rate quoted in the
market in the same period. The difference between the amount of lease payments and
their present valueis regarded as unrecognized financing expenses, and interest expenses
are recognized using the discount rate of the recognized present value of lease payments
during each period of the lease term and recognized in profit and loss for the current
period. Variable lease payments notincluded in the measurement of the lease liability are
recognized in profitand loss for the current period when actuallyincurred.

After the lease commencement date, the Company remeasures the lease liability at the
changed present value of lease payments and adjusts the book value of the right-of-use
asset when any change occurs in in-substance fixed payments, in amounts expected to be
payable underresidual value guarantees, in theindex or rate used to determine the lease
payments, or in the result of assessment or actual exercise of the purchase option, renewal
option ortermination option.

3.29.4 Accounting treatment of a lease in which the Company is the lessor

On the lease commencement date, the lease amount is recognized in profit or loss for the
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current periodin stages on a straight-line basisduringthe lease term.

At the commencement date, the Company shall classify a lease as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying

asset, otherwise it shall be classified asan operatinglease.
3.29.4.1 Operatingleases

The Company shall recognise lease paymentsfrom operatingleases as income on a
straight-line basis / units of production method (or other systematicand rational basis)
over the term of the relevantlease and theinitial direct costs incurred in obtainingan
operatinglease shall be capitalised and recognised as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis asthe leaseincome. The Company shall recognise the variable lease
payments relatingto the operatinglease but notincluded in the measurement of the lease

receivablesinto current profit orloss when incurred.
3.29.4.2 Finance leases

At the commencement date, the Company shall recognise the lease receivablesatan
account equal tothe netinvestmentin the lease (the sum of the present value of the
unguaranteed residual values and the lease payment that are not received at the
commencement date discounted at the interest rate implicitin the lease) and derecognise
the asset relatingto the finance lease. The Company shall recognise interestincome using

the interest rateimplicitin the lease overthe lease term.

The Company shall recognise the variable lease payments relatingto the finance lease but
notincluded in the measurement of the net investmentin the lease into current profit or

loss when incurred.

3.29.5 Accounting treatment of lease modifications

a) Lease modifications accounted for as a separate lease

The Company accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if simultaneously:

A. the modificationincreases the scope of the lease by addingthe right to use one or more
underlyingassets; and

B. the considerationforthe lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-

alone price for theincrease in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
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price.

b) Lease modifications not accounted for as a separate lease

A.The Companyisthe lessee

On the effective date of the lease modification, the Companyre-determines the lease term
and remeasure the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments after the
modification usinga revised discount rate. When the present value of lease payments after
the modificationis calculated, the discount rateis determined as the interest rate implicit
in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or, if thatrate can be determined, the
incremental borrowingrate on the effective date of the lease modification.

As for the impact of the said adjustment to the lease liability, accounting treatment shall
be conducted as follows:

The Company decreases the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset for lease
modificationsthat decrease the scope of the lease or shorten the lease term, and
recognize in profit or loss for the current period any gain or loss relating to the partial or
full termination of the lease;

The Company makes corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset for all other lease modifications.

B. The Companyisthe lessor

The Company accounts for a modification to an operatinglease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, consideringany prepaid or accrued lease payments

relatingto the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
The Companyshall account for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

® Decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease or
shorten the lease term. The Company shall recognise in profit or loss any gain or loss

relatingto the partial or full termination of the lease.

® Making a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset

for all other lease modifications.
The Company as a lessor

The Companyshall account for a modificationto an operatinglease asa new lease from
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the effective date of the modification, consideringany prepaid oraccrued lease payments

relatingto the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

For a modificationto a finance lease thatis not accounted for as a separate lease, the

Companyshallaccount for the modification as follows:

® |If the lease would have been classified as an operating lease had the modification been
in effect at the inception date, the Company shall account for the lease modification as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification and measure the carrying amount of
the underlying asset as the net investment in the lease immediately before the effective

date of the lease modification;

® If the lease would have been classified as a finance lease had the modification been in
effect at the inception date, the Company shall account for the lease modification

accordingto therequirementsin the modification or renegotiation of the contract.

3.30 Changes in Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
3.30.1 Significant changes in accounting polices
a) On October 25, 2023, the Ministry of Finance issued Interpretation No. 17 of the
Enterprise Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as "Interpretation No. 17"),
which addresses the classification of current liabilities versus non-current liabilities,
disclosure requirements for supplier financingarrangements, and accounting
treatment for sale and leaseback transactions. These provisions became effective on

January 1, 2024.

b) On August1, 2023, the Ministry of Finance issued Provisional Regulations on the
Accounting Treatment of Corporate Data Resources (Circular No. [2023] 11 of the
Ministry of Finance), which applies to data resources that are recognized as
intangible assets orinventoriesin accordance with the relevant provisionsof the
enterprise accountingstandards, as well as data resources legally owned or
controlled by the enterprise that are expected to bringeconomic benefits but do not
meet the criteria for asset recognition and thus are not recognized as such. This
regulation also provides specificrequirements for the disclosure of data resources

and became effective on January 1, 2024.
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c) In March 2024, the Ministry of Finance issued Compendium of Application Guidelines

for Enterprise Accounting Standards 2024, stipulatingthat warranty costs should be

recorded as part of operating costs.

The implementation of these regulations has not had a material impact on the financial

statements of the Company duringthe reporting period.

3.30.2 Significant changes in accounting estimates

The Company has no significant changesin accounting estimates for the reporting period.

4, Taxation

4.1 Major Categories of Tax and Tax Rates Applicable to the Company

Categories of tax

Basis of tax assessment

Taxrate %

Calculates output tax based on the tax rate of taxable

income, and calculates the value-added tax based on 0,1,5,6,9,
Value added tax (VAT) _ ) o

the difference after deducting the deductible input 10,11, 13

tax in the current period
Urban maintenance and

Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 7,5

construction tax
Educational surcharge Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 3
Local education surcharge Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 2
Enterprise income tax Taxable profits 25, 22,20, 15

4.2 Tax rates of income tax of different subsidiaries are stated as below:

4.2.1 TsannKuen (Zhangzhou) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (hereafter, TKL)

Categories of tax

Basis of tax assessment

Tax rate %

Calculates output tax based on the tax rate of taxable

income, and calculates the value-added tax based on

Value added tax 0,56,9,13
the difference after deducting the deductible input
taxin the current period

Urban maintenance and

Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 5
construction tax
Educational surcharge Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 3
Local education surcharge Payable turnover tax, tax exemption 2
Enterprise income tax Taxable profits 15

4.2.2 TsannKuen China (Shanghai) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (hereafter, TKS)
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Categories of tax Basis of tax assessment Tax rate %

Calculates output tax based on the tax rate of taxable income,
Value added tax and calculates the value-added tax based on the difference 5,9 13

after deductingthe deductible inputtaxin the current period

Urban maintenance and

Payable turnovertax, tax exemption 5
construction tax
Educational surcharge Payable turnovertax, tax exemption 3
Local education surcharge Payable turnovertax, tax exemption 2
Enterprise income tax Taxable profits 25

4.2.3 Xiamen Tsannkuen Property Services Co., Ltd. (hereafter, TKW)

Categories of tax Basis of tax assessment Tax rate %

Calculates output tax based on the tax rate of taxable
income, and calculates the value-added tax based on
Value added tax 1,5
the difference after deducting the deductible input

tax in the current period

Enterprise income tax Taxable profits 20
4.2.4 Pt.Star ComgisticIndonesia (hereafter, SCI)

Categories of tax Basis of tax assessment Taxrate %

Calculates output tax based on the tax rate of taxable
income, and calculates the value-added tax based on
Value added tax 11
the difference after deducting the deductible input

tax in the current period

Enterprise income tax Taxable profits 22

4.3 Preferential tax policy

(1) According to the principle of “The Second Batch of High-tech Enterprise Filing List of
Fujian Province's Accreditation Organisations for 2023 Accreditation Reporting”, TKL was
identified as Fujian Province High-tech Enterprise, and the certification was valid for 3
years (Certification No. GR202335003031), in accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People's Republicof China, the Implementation Regulations of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People's Republicof China and other relevant provisions, the
income tax rate of Tsann Kuen (Zhangzhou) Enterprise Co., Ltd. enjoys a 10% reduction for

three years from 2023, which the income taxrate is 15%.
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(2) According to “the Announcement on Further Implementation of Preferential Policies on

Income Tax for Smalland Micro Enterprises” (AnnouncementNo. 13 of 2022 by the

Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation), duringthe period from 1

January 2022 to 31 December 2024, the portion of the annual taxable income of small and

micro enterprises over RMB1 million but not exceeding RMB3 million will be deducted

from the taxableincome by 25%, and the enterprise income tax will be payable at a tax

rate of 20%. According to the Announcement on Preferential Policies on Income Tax for

Smalland Micro Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial Households

(Announcement No. 6 of 2023 of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of

Taxation), duringthe period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2024, the portion of the

annual taxableincome of a small and micro-enterprise thatis not more than 1 million yuan

will be deducted from the taxableincome by 25% and will be subject to an enterprise

income tax at a tax rate of 20%. TKW, a subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to the above

taxincentives.
5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Items 30 June 2024
Cash on hand 782,436.23
Cash in bank 342,946,232.24
Other monetary funds 3337.489.40
Total 347,066,157.87
Including: The total amount deposited overseas 17,650,829.51

1 January 2024
810,688.40

560,871,966.69
5,479,921.68
267.162.576.77
33,298,617.03

Of the other monetary funds, CNY 3,253,013.75 is the margin deposited by TKL for openinga letter of credit, and CNY

84,475.65 is the balance of the company's Alipay account. Except for the margin deposited foropeninga letter of credit,

there are no other fundsin monetary funds at the end of the period with restricted use rights or potential recovery risks

due to mortgage, pledge or freeze.

5.2 Held-for-trading financial assets

Items 30 June 2024
Financial assets measured at fairvalue through Profitor Loss 421,959,944.45
Including: Derivative financial assets 0.00

Structured Deposit Investment 421,959,944.45
Total 421,959,944.45

5.3 Accounts Receivables

5.3.1 Accounts receivable by aging

Aging 30 June 2024
Within one year 225,964,622.71
Including: Within 90 days 210,408,846.84

84

1 January 2024

470,009,033.34
432,800.00
469,576,233.34

—_— e

470,009,033.34

1 January 2024
199,933,855.42
184,755,154.07
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Aging
91 —180 days

181 — 270 days
271 — 365 days
1-2 years
2-3 years
Over 3 years
ncluding: 3-4 years
4-5 years
Over 5 years
Subtotal
Less: provision forbad debt

Total

30 June 2024
15,532,909.97
21,456.00
1,409.90
20,030.34

0.00
125,418.08
20,418.08
100,000.00
5,000.00
226,110,071.13
1,738,102.16
224,371,968.97

5.3.2 Accounts receivable by bad debt provision method

Category

Provision forbad debt
recognised individually
Provision forbad debt
recognized collectively
Including: Portfolio by age

Portfolio by related
parties
Total

(Continued)

Category

Provision forbad debt
recognisedindividually
Provision forbad debt
recognized collectively
Including: Portfolio by age

Portfolio by related
parties
Total

Book balance

Amount
0.00

226,110,071.13
225,578,038.41
532,032.72

226,110,071.13

30 June 2024

Provision for bad debt

P%j.ozl—tm Amount
0.00 0.00
100.00 1,738,102.16
99.76 1,738,102.16
024 0.00
100.00 1,738,102.16

Book balance

Amount
0.00

200,079,273.50
199,353,223.66
726,049.84

200,079,273.50

1 January 2024

Provision
ratio (%)
0.00

Provision forbad debt

0.00 0.00
100.00 3,123,053.38
99.64 3,123,053.38
0.36 0.00
100.00 3,123,053.38

Specificinstructions for provision for bad debts:

Provision

ratio (%)
0.00

1January 2024
15,178,641.95
4.80

54.60
20,000.00
9,677.56
115,740.52
110,740.52
0.00

5,000.00
200,079,273.50
3,123,053.38
196,956,220.12

Carrying amount

0.00

224,371,968.97
223,839,936.25
532,032.72

224,371,968.97

Carrying amount

0.00

196,956,220.12
196,230,170.28
726,049.84

196,956,220.12

Accounts receivables with bad debt provision are recognised by portfolio by age

Aging

Not overdue
Overdue 1 —30 days
Overdue 31 — 60 days
Overdue 61 — 90 days

Overdue more than 90 days

Book balance

30 June 2024

Provision for bad debt

212,994,762.03
12,514,669.62
15,390.18
26,353.46
26,863.12

1,133,141.86
563,160.08
3,078.04
11,859.06
26,863.12
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Aging
Total

(Continued)
Aging

Not overdue

Overdue 1 —30 days

Overdue 31 — 60 days
Overdue 61 — 90 days

Overdue more than 90 days

Total

Accounts Receivables

Portfolio by related parties

Total
(Continued)

Book balance

532,032.72

Book balance

30 June 2024

Provision for bad debt

225,578,038.41

Book balance

1738,102.16

1 January 2024

Provision for bad debt

173,313,895.66
22,200,028.43
1,954,882.39
1,850,747.41
33,669.77
199,353,223.66

866,569.51
999,001.31
390,976.48
832,836.31

33,669.77
3,123,053.38

Accounts receivables with bad debt provision are recognised by portfolio by related parties

30 June 2024

Provision for bad debt

Provision ratio (%)

=T - =

232,032.72

Accounts Receivables

Portfolio by related parties

Total

Book balance
726,049.84
126,049.34

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

1 January 2024

Provision for bad debt

Provision ratio (%)

Provision ratio (%)

0.77

Provision ratio (%)

Reason for provision

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

Basis for the amount of bad debt provision in the current period:

Reason forprovision

Refer to Note 3.11for the recognition criteria and explanation of the provision for bad

debts based on groups.

5.3.3 Changes of provision for bad debt during the reporting period

Category

Provision for bad debt by

group
Total

5.3.4 Top five closing balances by entity

Entity

1 January 2024

3,123,053.38

Provision

Changes duringthe reporting period

1,036,715.18

3,123,053.38  1,036,715.18

30 June 2024

Recoveryor Write-off 2V June Uz
reversal —— — —

2,426,048.37 0.00 -4,381.97 1,738,102.16

2,426,048.37 0.00 -4,381.97 1,738,102.16

Accounts receivable

Contract Assets

No. 1
No. 2

No. 3
No. 4

No. 5
Total

53,564,889.79
47,862,346.53
27,914,028.03
26,739,078.34
25,982,100.78
182,062,443.47

5.4 Advances to Suppliers

53,564,889.79
47,862,346.53
27,914,028.03
26,739,078.34
25,982,100.78

0.00 18206244347

5.4.1 Advances to suppliers by aging

Proportion (%)

Bad debt provision

23.69
21.17
12.34
11.83
11.49
80.52

534,963.11
331,481.05
143,378.19
135,707.71
132,050.33
1277,580.39
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30 June 2024

Aging

Amount Proportion (%)
Within one year 5,711,474.63 100.00
Total 5,711,474.63 100.00

5.4.2 Top five closing balances by entity

1 January 2024

Proportion (%)

100.00
100.00

The total amount of the top five vendors with the largest prepaid amounts by the Company

at the end of the reportingperiod is CNY 2,315,008.29, accountingfor 40.53% of the total

amount ofthe prepaymentat the end of the reporting period.

5.5 Other Receivables

5.5.1 Otherreceivables by category

Items 30 June 2024
Interestreceivable 0.00
Dividendreceivable 0.00
Other receivables 23,379,970.64
Total 23,379,970.64

5.5.5 Other Receivables
5.5.5.1 Other receivables by aging

Aging 30 June 2024
Within one year 22,641,750.62
Including: Within 90 days 21,791,860.34
91 —180 days 265,921.59
181 - 270 days 194,966.49
271 — 365 days 389,002.20
1-2 years 207,076.19
2-3 years 30,000.00
Over 3 years 1,043,388.40
ncluding: 3-4 years 30,000.00
4-5 years 0.00
Over5 years 1,013,388.40
Subtotal 23,922,215.21
Less: provision forbad debt 542,244.57
Total 23,379,970.64
5.5.5.2 Other receivables by nature
Nature 30 June 2024
Export tax refund 15,000,000.00
Other open credits 7,688,450.64
Deposit 1,233,764.57
Subtotal 23,922,215.21
Less: Provision forbad debt 542,244.57
Total 23,379,970.64

5.5.5.3 Other receivables by provision for bad debt

87

1 January 2024
0.00

0.00
23,318,410.66

== -

23,318,410.66

1January 2024
22,529,217.76
22,335,217.72

102,300.00
10,000.00
81,700.04

141,700.00

0.00
1,111,395.56
0.00

0.00
1,111,395.56
23,782,313.32

463,902.66

23,318,410.66

1January 2024
15,000,000.00
7,504,920.31
1,277,393.01
23,782,313.32
463,902.66
23,318,410.66
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Provision forbad debt

Stage 1

Expected credit

Stage 2

Stage 3

Expected credit loss for

Expected credit loss for

loss for the next

the whole duration (no

the whole duration

(Creditimpairment has

credit impairment) )
12 months credit impairment occurred
Closing balance as of
1/1/2024 0.00 0.00 0.00
Carrying amount of other
receivablesin current period —_ —_— —_—
on 1/1/2024
Transferto stage 2 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transferto stage 3 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer back to stage 2 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transferback to stage 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recognition 542,244.57 0.00 0.00
Reversal 0.00 0.00 0.00
Used 0.00 0.00 0.00
Written off 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other movements 0.00 0.00 0.00
Closing balance as of
30/6/2024 242.244.57 0.00 0.00
5.5.5.4 Provision for bad debt recognized, recovered or reversed
Catenor 1 Janua Changes duringthe reporting period
2024 Provision Recovery or Write-off Other
- reversal - -
Provision for bad debt 326,422.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
recognized individually
Provision forbad debt
. . 137,480.02 78,341.91 0.00 0.00 0.00
recognized by portfolio i
Total 463,902.66 78,341.91 0.00 0.00 0.00

5.5.5.5 There are no other receivables write-off duringthe reporting period

5.5.5.6 Top five closing balances by entity

Entity name

Zhangzhou Taiwan investment
zone State Administration of
Taxation

State Grid Fujian Electric Power
Co., Ltd. Zhangzhou Longhai
District Power Supply Company
China Export CreditInsurance
Corporation Fujian Branch

PT. PLN (PERSERO)

Guangdong Songging
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.

Total

5.6 Inventories

Nature

Export tax
refund

Other open
credits

Deposit

Deposit

Other open
credits

5.6.1 Inventories by category

Balance at 30

June 2024 Aging
15,000,000.00 0-90 days
2,627,795.98 0-90 days
648,450.00 Over 5 years
364,938.40 Over 5 years
326,422.64 0-180 days
18,967,607.02

88

Proportion of
the balance to

Total

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
542,244.57
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

242,244.57

30 June 2024

326,422.64

215,821.93

542,244.57

Provision for

the total other
receivables (%)

62.70

10.98

2.71

bad debt

326,422.64

=

326,422.64
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30 June 2024

1 January 2024

Items . . - .
_— Provision for Carrying Provisionfor Carrying
Book balance - Book balance - .
—— impairment amount — impairment amount

Raw materials

85,417,908.25  12,234,508.21 73,183,400.04 81,685,745.08  10,419,316.94 71,266,428.14

Work in process 29,254,465.67 0.00 29,254,465.67 22,218,317.04 0.00 22,218,317.04
Self-
manufactured 32,385,331.66  2,978,998.60  29,406,333.06  31,940,139.03  3,414,119.26  28,526,019.77
semi-finished
goods
Finished goods 80,224,846.69 7,474,280.08 72,750,566.61 75,637,116.35 6,103,155.87 69,533,960.48
Low-value 1,869,780.64 0.00 1,869,780.64 508,994.84 0.00 508,994.84
consumables
::'::;rt'als n 1,053,491.32 0.00 1,053,491.32 355,613.55 0.00 355,613.55
Total 230,205,824.23  22,687,786.89  207.518,037.34  212,345925.89  19,936,592.07  192,409,333.82

5.6.2 Provision for impairment

Increasein current year Decrease in current year
Ite 1 January 2024 Impact of Recovered or Impact of 30 June 2024
Accrual changes in Y . changesin
Written off
exchange rates —  exchangerates

Raw materials 10,419,316.94 2,080,586.57 21,440.18 286,835.48 0.00  12,234,508.21
Self-manufactured

e 3,414,119.26 562,671.84 0.00 997,792.50 0.00  2,978,998.60
semi-finished goods
Finishedgoods 6,103,155.87 1,796,316.43 4,462.46 429,654.68 0.00  7,474,280.08
Total 19,936,592.07 4,439,574.84 25,902.64 1,714,282.66 0.00 22,687,786.89

Note: The criteria for making provision for the decline in value of inventories on a portfolio basis are set

outin Note 3.13.

5.7 Other Current Assets

30 June 2024

1 January 2024

Items

Input tax to be deducted 7,949,573.18 16,539,595.69
Financial investment 414,960,958.62 443,538,927.34
Total 422,910,531.80 460,078,523.03

5.8 Debt Investment

5.8.1 Situation of debt investment

30 June 2024

1 January 2024

ltem Provision Provision
Book balance for Carrying amount Book balance for Carrying amount
impairment impairment
Large certificate of
deposit 332,924,463.92 0.00 332,924,463.92 100,076,779.20 0.00 100,076,779.20
i
Subtotal 332,924,463.92 0.00 332,924,463.92 100,076,779.20 0.00 100,076,779.20
Less: Debt
investmentsdue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

within one year
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30 June 2024 1 January 2024

Item Provision Provision
Book balance for Carrying amount Book balance for Carrying amount

impairment impairment
Total 332,924,463.92 0.00 332,924,463.92 100,076,779.20 0.00 100,076,779.20

5.8.2 Significant debt investments at the end of the period

30 June 2024

ltem
tem . . Overdue

Face value Coupon rate Effective rate Expiry date Srincioal
Xiamen Bank Large
Certificates of Deposit 50,000,000.00 3.30% 3.30% 2026/12/21
Xiamen Bank Large
Certificates of Deposit 50,000,000.00 3.30% 3.30% 2026/12/26
Xiamen Bank Large
Certificates of Deposit 50,000,000.00 2.90% 2.90% 2025/8/23
Xiamen International
Bank Fixed deposit 50,000,000.00 2.85% 2.85% 2026/4/9
Chiyu Banking
Corporation Ltd. Xiamen 50,000,000.00 2.85% 2.85% 2026/5/11
Branch Fixed deposit
)égrm%?xlgé%rggégtnal 50,000,000.00 2.75% 2.75% 2026/5/23
QuanzhouBank Co., Ltd.
éha ngzhou Branch Fixed 30,000,000.00 2.85% 2.85% 2026/6/25

eposit
Total 330,000,000.00
(Continued)
1 January 2024

Ilte

Face value Coupon rate Effective rate Expiry date %icm:l
Xiamen Bank Large

e g . 50,000,000.00 3.30% 3.30% 2026/12/21

Certificates of Deposit
Xiamen Bank Large 50,000,000.00 3.30% 3.30% 2026/12/26
Certificates of Deposit — === ===
Total 100,000,000.00

5.9 Other equity instrument investment

5.9.1 General information of other equity instrument investment

30 June 2024

1 January 2024

ltems
Non-trading equity instrumentinvestment 40,000.00 40,000.00
Total 40,000.00 40,000.00
5.10 Investment Properties
5.10.1 Investment properties accounted for using cost model

Buildingand Land userights  Constructionin
Items Total
—_— plants progress E—
Initial cost:
Balance on 1 January 2024 65,737,686.21 29,260,577.51 0.00 94,998,263.72
Increase during the reporting period 15,076,672.59 0.00 0.00 15,076,672.59
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ftems Buildingand Land userights  Construction in Total
plants progress
1. Acquisition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ig;i:::;:gﬁ:: L”r‘c’)zrr‘;cs’sries/ fixedassets 15,076,672.59 0.00 000  15,076,672.59
3. Impact of changes in exchange rate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1. Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Other transferred out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Impact of changes in exchange rate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 80,814,358.80 29,260,577.51 0.00 110,074,936.31
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation:
Balance on 1 January 2024 59,127,081.50 17,406,873.04 0.00 76,533,954.54
Increase during the reporting period 13,358,604.58 311,055.90 0.00 13,669,660.48
1. Accrual or amortization 231,275.82 311,055.90 0.00 542,331.72
2. Transferfrom fixed assets 13,127,328.76 0.00 0.00 13,127,328.76
3. Impact of changes in exchange rate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1. Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Other transferred out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Impact of changes in exchange rate 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 72,485,686.08 17,717,928.94 0.00 90,203,615.02
Provision for impairment:
Balance on 1 January 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1. Accrual or amortization 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1. Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Carrying amount:
Balance on 30 June 2024 8,328,672.72 11,542,648.57 0.00 19,871,321.29
Balance on 1 January 2024 6,610,604.71 11,853,704.47 0.00 18,464,309.18
5.10.2 Investment properties without certificate of title
Item Carrying amount Reason
Lvyuan three country villa 710,583.91
Total 710,583.91

Note: Lvyuanthree country villa is the houses with limited property rights purchased by the TsannKuen

China (Shanghai) Enterprise Co., Ltd. which is the subsidiary of the Company from Shanghai Lvsheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. in 1999, and there has no land expropriation. Shanghai Lvsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Jiading district, Huangdu town Lvyuan community residents'
committees issued the certificate jointly to prove the right of this property belongs to TsannKuen China

(Shanghai) Enterprise Co., Ltd. in January 2006.
5.11 Fixed Assets

5.11.1 Fixed assets by category
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Items 30 June 2024
Fixed assets

1 January 2024

150,602,758.55 157,096,267.26
Disposal of fixed assets 0.00 0.00
Total 150,602,758.55 157,096,267.26
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5.11.2 Fixed assets

5.11.2.1 General information of fixed assets

Items Houses and buildings

Initial cost:

Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period
(i) Acquisition

(ii) Transfer from constructionin
progress

(iii) Transfer from investment properties

(iv) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period

(i) Disposal
(if) Transferto investment properties

(iii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Balance on 30 June 2024

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period

(i) Provision
(if) Transferfrom investment properties

(iii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period

(i) Disposal

(ii) Transferfrom investment properties
(iii) Impact of changes in exchange rates

Balance on 30 June 2024

Provision for impairment:

104,189,980.43

695,013.93
0.00

0.00

403,833.00
291,180.93
15,480,505.59
0.00
15,480,505.59
0.00
89,404,488.77

65,970,803.74
2,015,993.10
1,531,324.43
363,449.70
121,218.97
13,490,778.46
0.00
13,490,778.46
0.00
54,496,018.38

Machineries

149,571,258.60
1,485,744.68
1,255,317.51

0.00

0.00
230,427.17
160,894.44
160,894.44

0.00

0.00

150,896,108.84

80,192,617.35
4,617,543.03
4,448,990.85
0.00
168,552.18
153,523.43
153,523.43
0.00

0.00
84,656,636.95

Electronic devices

modules and others
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831,419,404.81
12,970,375.68
12,746,162.24

0.00

0.00
224,213.44
2,425,915.99
2,425,915.99
0.00

0.00
841,963,864.50

759,183,935.50
10,592,187.54
10,406,690.82
0.00
185,496.72
1,146,992.63
1,146,992.63
0.00

0.00
768,629,130.41

Vehicles

Improvement
expense of fixed

16,139,483.39
77,581.27
153,591.33

0.00

0.00
-76,010.06
3,396.42
3,396.42

0.00

0.00
16,213,668.24

15,045,334.46
158,630.38
235,228.24
0.00
-76,597.86
3,396.42
3,396.42

0.00

0.00
15,200,568.42

assets

19,220,188.62
51,003.32
0.00

0.00

0.00
51,003.32
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
19,271,191.94

18,663,965.50
127,701.37
79,882.71
0.00
47,818.66
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
18,791,666.87

Total

1,120,540,315.85
15,279,718.88
14,155,071.08

0.00

403,833.00
720,814.80
18,070,712.44
2,590,206.85
15,480,505.59
0.00
1,117,749,322.29

939,056,656.55
17,512,055.42
16,702,117.05
363,449.70
446,488.67
14,794,690.94
1,303,912.48
13,490,778.46
0.00
941,774,021.03
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Items

Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period

(i) Provision

(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period
(i) Disposal

Balance on 30 June 2024

Carrying amount:

Balance on 30 June 2024

Balance on 1 January 2024

5.11.2.2 Idle fixed assets

Item
Machineries

Electronic device, modules, and others
Vehicles
Improvement expense of fixed assets

Total

Houses and buildings

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

34,908,470.39
38,219,176.69

5,051,301.00
2,103,760.65

2,571,879.58

e Al A ety

274587111

5.11.2.3 Fixed assets without certificate of title

Items
Jingyinggarden
Lvyuan three country villa

Machineries

5,423,016.98
519,618.00
494,692.73
24,925.27
0.00

0.00
5,942,634.98

60,296,836.91
©3,955,624.27

Electronic devices

modulesand others

18,944,903.63
465,428.22
451,420.11
14,008.11
0.00

0.00
19,410,331.85

53,924,402.24
23.290.565.68

Accumulated depreciation

9

2,941,019.38
1,619,776.39

18,929.88
2,571,879.58

e Al A ety

2,151,605.23

Carrying amount

78,241.54

129,197.08

Improvement

Vehicles expense of fixed
assets

8,414.63 11,056.80
35.60 68.85

0.00 0.00

35.60 68.85

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
8,450.23 11,125.65
1,004,649.59 468,399.42
1.085,734.30 245,166.32

Provision forimpairment

1,084,921.03

461,014.85
0.00
0.00

1,545,935.88

Total

24,387,392.04
985,150.67
946,112.84
39,037.83
0.00

0.00
25,372,542.71

150,602,758.55
157,096,267.26

Carrying amount

1,025,360.59
22,969.41
0.00

0.00
1,048,330.00

Reason

Legal proceduresin process
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5.12 Constructionin Progress

5.12.1 Construction in progress by category

Items 30 June 2024 1 January 2024
Construction in progress 201,177.14 1,773,322.12
Total 201,177.14 1,773,322.12
5.12.2 Constructionin progress
5.12.2.1 General information of construction in progress
30 June 2024 1 January 2024

Items isi i isi i
tems Book balance P.rowsllon for Carrying Book balance P.rows'lonfor Carrying

- impairment amount - impairment amount
Sporadic project 16,834.41 0.00 16,834.41 868,012.40 0.00 868,012.40
Equipment
pending 184,342.73 0.00 184,342.73 905,309.72 0.00 905,309.72
acceptance
Total 201,177.14 0.00 201,177.14 1,773,322.12 000 1,773,322.12
5.13 Right-of-use Assets
Items Houses and buildings Vehicles Total
Initial cost:
Balance on 1 January 2024 408,735,436.56 0.00 408,735,436.56
Increase during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) Leases 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 408,735,436.56 0.00 408,735,436.56
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on 1 January 2024 40,171,444.88 0.00 40,171,444.88
Increase during the reporting period 7,310,060.88 0.00 7,310,060.88
(i) Provision 7,310,060.88 0.00 7,310,060.88
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 47,481,505.76 0.00 47,481,505.76
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on 1 January 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00
Increase during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) Provision 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Decrease during the reporting period 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) Disposal 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 0.00 0.00 0.00

Carrying amount:
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Items
Balance on 30 June 2024

Balance on 1 January 2024
5.14 Intangible Assets

Houses and buildings

361,253,930.80
368,563,991.68

5.14.1 General information of intangible assets

Items
Initial cost:

Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period

(i) Acquisition

(if) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period
(i) Disposal

(if) Impact of changes in exchange rates

Balance on 30 June 2024

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period

(i) Provision

(if) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period

(i) Disposal

(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Balance on 30 June 2024

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance on 1 January 2024

Increase during the reporting period

(i) Provision

(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Decrease during the reporting period

(i) Disposal

(ii) Impact of changes in exchange rates
Balance on 30 June 2024

Carrying amount:

Balance on 30 June 2024

Balance on 1 January 2024

Land use rights

19,305,529.49
157,520.08
157,520.08

0.00

314,383.49

0.00

314,383.49
19,148,666.08

6,914,270.32
263,759.70
66,168.77
197,590.93

0.00
0.00
0.00

7,178,030.02

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

11,970,636.06
12,391,259.17

5.15 Long-term Deferred Expenses

Items 1 January 2024

Telecommunications
project expenses

Houses and buildings
renovation expenses

Total 21,770,803.06

46,477.38

7,724,325.68

Increase during
the reporting

Amortisation

Vehicles

0.00
0.00

Software

53,815,491.39
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
53,815,491.39

52,723,758.75
835,308.77
835,308.77
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
53,559,067.52

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

256,423.87
1,001,732.64

period
66,037.74 9,572.04
702,935.77 1,530,909.87
268,973.51 1.540,481.91
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Other decrease

(=]
(=3
o

E

Total
361,253,930.80
368,563,991.68

Total

73,121,020.88
157,520.08
157,520.08
0.00
314,383.49
0.00
314,383.49
72,964,157.47

59,638,029.07
1,099,068.47
901,477.54
197,590.93
0.00

0.00

0.00
60,737,097.54

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

12,227,059.93
13,482,991.81

30 June 2024

102,943.08

6.896,351.58

6,999,294.66
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5.16 Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

5.16.1 Deferred tax assets before offsetting

30 June 2024

Items Deductible temporary Deferred tax assets

1 January 2024

Deductible temporary Deferred tax assets

Provision forasset impairment
Provision for credit impairment
Unrealized intragroup profit
Accrued expenses

Lease liabilities

Total

5.16.2 Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting

Items

Policy relocation

Financial assets held fortrading

differences
36,487,765.77 5,703,442.82
2,098,789.66 314,890.39
498,161.01 74,724.15
8,257,041.20 1,315,446.27
400,699,320.84 60,104,898.13
448,041,078.48 67,513,401.76

30 June 2024

Deductible Deferred tax assets

differences

34,434,912.22 5,425,006.11
2,471,988.41 374,128.32
334,417.48 83,604.37
8,611,855.82 1,368,648.92
393,053,473.02 58,958,020.95
438,906,646.95 66,209,408.67

1 January 2024

Deductible temporary Deferred tax assets

temporary
differences

differences

3,085,277.78 462,791.67 2,258,216.67 338,732.50
gscscst':rated depreciation of fixed 13,758,056.75 2,063,708.51 14,675,125.02 2,201,268.75
Right-of-use Assets 361,253,930.80 54,188,089.62 368,563,991.68 55,284,598.75
Total 378,097,265.33 56,714,589.80 385,497,333.37 57,824,600.00
5.16.3 Deferred tax assets or liabilities on a net basis after elimination

The amount of The amount of

- . Balance after - . Balance after

deferredtaxassetsand —, .. deferredtaxassetsand —, .
Iltem — offsettingon 30 June . offsettingon 31
— liabilities offset on30 2024 liabilities offset on 31 December 2023

June 2024 I December 2023 -
Deferred tax assets -56,714,589.80 10,798,811.95 -57,824,600.00 8,384,808.67
Deferred tax -56,714,589.80 0.00 -57,824,600.00 0.00
liabilities
5.16.4 Unrecognized deferred tax assets

30 June 2024 1 January 2024

Items
Provision forasset impairment 11,403,413.51 9,889,071.89
Provision forcredit impairment 181.555.94 1.114.967.63
Accrued expenses 598,651.20 10,070,400.14
Payroll liability 1,705,786.24 2,025,286.49
Undistributed deficit 34,913,895.39 42,007,659.51
Total 48,803,302.28 65,107,385.66

5.16.5 Deductible losses not recognised as deferred tax assets will expire in the following

periods:
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Items

Year 2023
Year 2024
Year 2025
Year 2026
Year 2027

Year 2028 to year 2033

30 June 2024

0.00
14,343,181.96
0.00

0.00
6,631,108.51

29,434,879.10

31 December 2023

15,495,274.18
14,343,181.96
0.00

0.00
6,631,108.51

5,538,094.86

Total 20,409,169.57 42,007,659.51
5.17 Other Non-current Assets
30 June 2024 1 January 2024

Items Book Provisionfor Carrying Provision for Carrying

balance impairment amount balance impairment amount
Prepaid
equipment fee 205,261.00 0.00 205,261.00 136,429.00 0.00 136,429.00
Total 205,261.00 000 20526100  136,429.00 000  136,429.00
5.18 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
Items 30 June 2024 1 January 2024 Reasons
Monetary funds 3,253,013.75 5,352,305.24 Credit
Total 3,253,013.75 5,352,305.24
5.19 Short-term Borrowings
ltems 30 June 2024 1 January 2024
Creditloan 21,677,320.31 0.00
Total 21,677,320.31 0.00

5.20 Notes Payable

Items
Bank acceptance bills

Total

30 June 2024

8,033,553.53
8.033,553.53

1 January 2024
9,137,361.03
2,137,361.03

Note: There are no expired notes payable that have not been paid as at the end of current year.

5.21 Accounts Payable

Items
Within 1 year

Over 1year

Total

5.22 Advances from Customers

Items
Within 1 year

Over 1year

Total

5.23 Contract Liabilities

Items
Advance from merchandise

Total

30 June 2024
493,995,609.17

3,518,424.45
497,514,033.62

30 June 2024
2,983,701.64
87,334.81

—_—t

3.071,036.45
30 June 2024
11,915,654.74

11,915,654.74
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1 January 2024
486,454,528.92

5,420,389.52
491,874,918.44

1 January 2024
2,506,352.46
117,915.81

_—— o=

2,624,268.27

1 January 2024
16,485,904.83
16,485,904.83
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5.24 Employee Benefits Payable

5.24.1 Details of employee benefits payable

1 January 2024

Items

Short-term employee benefits 49,099,386.69
Post-employment benefits-

defined contribution plans 9,244.28
Termination benefits 0.00
Other benefitsdue withinone

year 0.00
Total 49,108,630.97

Increase during the Decrease during the

reporting period

reporting period

154,502,727.23

9,652,785.78

154,673,707.52

9,652,971.88

30 June 2024
48,928,406.40

9,058.18

5.24.2 Short-term employee benefits

1 January 2024

Items

Salar.le‘s, bonuses, allowances and 33,333,928.49
subsidies

Employee benefits 0.00
Social insurance 6,048.44
Including: Health insurance 5,665.66
Injury insurance 382.78
Birth insurance 0.00

Housing accumulation fund 13,276,454.68

Labour union funds and employee
education funds
Short-term absence pay

0.00

2,482,955.08

Total 49,099,386.69

Increase during the

Decrease during the

reporting period

reporting period

132,989,324.43

9,445,370.19
6,738,304.73
4,658,960.07
1,746,774.76

332,569.90
4,404,394.37

633,684.58

291,648.93

154,502,727.23

137,571,181.82

30 June 2024

28,752,071.10

6,527,445.02 2,917,925.17
6,739,096.10 5,257.07
4,659,684.89 4,940.84
1,746,841.31 316.23
332,569.90 0.00
2,698,608.13 14,982,240.92
633,684.58 0.00
503,691.87 2,270,912.14
154,673,707.52 48,928,406.40

5.24.3 Defined contribution plans

1 January 2024

Items

Basic endowmentinsurance 8,969.78
Unemploymentinsurance 274.50
Total 9,244.28

Increase during the

Decrease during the

reporting period

reporting period

9,394,299.69
258,486.09
2.652.785.78

9,394,485.79
258,486.09
2.652,971.88

30 June 2024

8,783.68
274.50
9.058.18

Note: The Company participates in the endowment insurance and unemployment insurance plan

established by the government, according to these plans, the Company pays planed fees to the

Company’s location. In addition to the monthly fee deposit, the Company no longer bears further

payment obligations. Corresponding expenses are expensed as incurred or costs related assets.

5.25 Taxes Payable

Items

Enterprise income tax
Value added tax (VAT)
Individual income tax
Educational surcharge

City construction tax

Other

Total

5.26 Other Payables

9

30 June 2024

6,525,211.18
841,561.40
482,525.43
342,052.17
342,052.17
1,836,135.72
10,369,538.07

1 January 2024
54,382,240.91
894,039.02
561,566.16
422,008.28
422,008.28
1,722,378.93
28,404,241.58
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5.26.1 Other payables by category
Items

Interest payable

Dividend payable

Other payable

Total
5.26.2 Other payables

5.26.2.1 Other payables by nature

Iltems
Within 1 year
Over 1year

Total

30 June 2024

0.00

0.00

29,628,451.67

=== =

29,628,451.67

30 June 2024

19,746,393.92
9,882,057.75
2262845167

5.26.2.2 Significant other payables with aging over one year

Items
Deposit

Total

30 June 2024

5,148,403.75

5,148,403.75

5.27 Non-current Liabilities Maturing within One Year

Items
Lease liabilities maturing within one year
Total

5.28 Lease Liabilities

Items

Lease liabilities

Less: unrecognized financingcharges
Subtotal

Less: Lease liabilities due within one year

Total

5.29 Share Capital

Item 1 January 2024
New issues
Number of
185,391,680.00

total shares

30 June 2024

7,425,549.47

1,425,549.47

30 June 2024

710,586,581.70
309,887,260.86
400,639,320.84

7,425,549.47

333,273,771.37

Changes duringthe reporting period (+,-)

Capitalisation

Others

of reserves

1 January 2024
0.00

0.00
35,202,629.21

35,202,629.21

1 January 2024

22,733,597.34
12,469,031.87
35,202,629.21

Reason

Return upon termination of contract

1 January 2024
883,368.79

883,368.79

1 January 2024
711,067,541.70
318,014,068.68
393,053,473.02

883,368.79

332,170,104.23

30 June 2024

185,391,680.00
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5.30 Capital Reserves
Item

Capital premium (share premium)

Other capital reserves

Total

5.31 Other Comprehensive Income

8
3

1. Other comprehensive income will
not be reclassified to profitor loss
Including: Changes of remeasurement
of the defined benefitplan

2. Items will be reclassified to profitor
loss

Including:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations
Total

1 January 2024 Increase during the reporting period Decrease during the reporting period 30 June 2024
210,045,659.80 0.00 0.00 210,045,659.80
86,763,305.99 0.00 0.00 86,763,305.99
296,808,965.79 0.00 0.00 296,808,965.79
Current year
. Less: previously
Less: previously - -
recognisedin recognisedin
recognisedin
other other Aftertax Aftertax
1January 2024  Amount forthe com rehem comprehensive Less: Income attributable to attributable to 30 June 2024
year before tax income income tax expense the parent minority
——— transferredinto company shareholders
transferredinto ———— .,
rofitor loss retained
Drofitorfoss earnings
41,036.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,036.56
41,036.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,036.56
10,186,016.95 122,316.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 91,737.73 30,579.24 10,277,754.68
10,186,016.95 122,316.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 91,737.73 30,579.24 10,277,754.68
10,227,053.51 122,316.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 91,737.73 30,579.24 10,318,791.24
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5.32 Surplus Reserves

Increase during the

Decrease during the

Item 1 January 2024 - -
e reporting period
Statutory surplus 75,501,488.36 0.00
reserves

Total 75,501,488.36 0.00

- - 30 June 2024
reporting period —

0.00 75,501,488.36
0.00 75,501,488.36

Note: Pursuant to the Company Law of the People's Republic of China and Articles of Association, the Company

appropriates 10% of net profit to the statutory surplus reserves.
5.33 Retained Earnings

Items
Balance at the end of last period before adjustments

Adjustments forthe openingbalance (increase /(decrease)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period afteradjustments

Add: net profit attributable to owners of the parent company for the reporting
period
Less: appropriation to statutory surplusreserves

Appropriation to discretionary surplus reserves
Provision forgeneral risk reserves

Payment of ordinary share dividends

Common stock dividends converted to share capital
Balance at the end of the reporting period

5.34 Revenue and Cost of Sales

Reporting period

Items

Revenue Costs of sales
Principal activities 761,016,486.42 659,592,166.69
Other activities 27,069,511.61 6,141,115.42
Total 788,085,998.03 665,733,282.11

5.34.1 Revenue from principal activities (by industry or business)

Reporting period

Industry (business) Revenue Costs of sales
Household appliances 761,016,486.42 659,592,166.69
industry

Total 261,016,486.42 659,592,166.69

5.34.2 Revenue from principal activities (by product)

Reporting period

Products Revenue Costs of sales

Cateringand Cooking 462,268,892.25

228,514,421.19

399,171,424.13

Home helper 201,239,650.62

Tea/Coffee makers 63,844,429.06 55,995,383.83
Others 6,388,743.92 3,185,708.11
Total 761,016,486.42 659,592,166.69

5.34.3 Revenue from principal activities (by region)

Reporting period
Region Revenue

102

Reporting period

Same period of last year

Costs of sales

507,010,039.53 481,265,907.40
0.00 0.00
507,010,039.53 481,265,907.40
33,989,579.63 87,937,274.85
0.00 6,575,638.72

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
46,347,920.00 55,617,504.00
0.00 0.00
494,651,699.16 207,010,039.53

Same period of last year

Revenue Costs of sales
588,434,864.79 499,219,639.42
36,975,624.36 6,575,466.81
625,410,489.15 205,795,106.23

Same period of last year

Revenue Costs of sales
588,434,864.79 499,219,639.42
288,434,864.79 499,219,639.42

Same period of last year

Revenue Costs of sales
357,869,438.26 302,538,598.25
165,067,913.46 144,579,440.71

61,696,249.75 50,340,030.43
3,801,263.32 1,761,570.03
588,434,864.79 499,219,639.42

Same period of last year

Revenue

Costs of sales
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Australia 8,195,752.50 6,586,175.57 6,233,318.04
Africa 6,903,962.62 5,416,726.87 16,241,597.10
America 364,669,044.48 320,394,879.52 239,862,232.02
Europe 254,715,358.72 218,603,500.75 204,613,214.53
Asia 126,532,368.10 108,590,883.98 121,484,503.10
Total 761,016,486.42 659,592,166.69 588,434,864.79

5.35 Taxes and Surcharges

Items

City construction tax
Educational surcharge
Property tax

Land use tax

Stamp duty

Other

Total

5.36 Selling and Distribution Expenses

Items

Employee remunerations

Claims experiment expenses
Salescommissionand aftersales service fees
Rental expenses

Travel expenses

Advertisements charges and sales promotion
Administrative expenses

Others

Total

5.37 General and Administrative Expenses

Items
Employee remunerations

Depreciation and amortization of assets
Rental expenses

Insurance expenses

Administrative expenses

Travel expenses

Consultantfees

Maintenance expenses

Others

Total

5.38 Research and Development Expenses

Items
Employee remunerations

Test expenses
Depreciation and amortization of assets

Certification expenses
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Reporting period

771,046.35
733,068.58
1,464,035.27
199,423.38
422,227.45
37,751.66
3.627,552.69

Reporting period
7,980,455.20
739,908.02
3,370,906.57
11,475.66
519,120.57
1,599,504.01
68,301.60
1,416,117.54
15,705,789.17

Reporting period
20,480,551.60
5,616,418.35
218,444.62
1,128,414.22
699,904.81
1,038,227.91
1,127,270.04
1,449,875.10
3,207,699.86
34,966,806.51

Reporting period
23,261,847.82
3,430,331.72
2,189,562.63
773,128.19

5,051,733.22
12,666,001.06
206,546,351.96
171,004,608.28
103,950,944.90
499,219,639.42

Same period of last year

815,562.58
788,050.52
1,309,712.58
199,423.38
328,022.77
7,523.97
3,448,295.80

Same period of last year

7,471,952.56
475,994.68
1,216,845.74
11,669.70
302,543.62
1,768,788.97
62,930.82
1,850,506.88
13,161,232.97

Same period of last year

18,936,775.53
5,862,732.27
109,552.16
790,887.51
817,159.55
2,054,728.01
1,448,284.62
1,907,381.29
3,244,936.16
35,172,437.10

Same period of last year

19,869,956.56
2,169,153.45
3,595,330.05
771,492.96
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Items
Rental expenses

Patentexpenses

Travel expenses
Maintenance expenses
Consultantfees

Others

Total

5.39 Finance Expenses

Items
Interestexpenses

Including:interest expense on lease liabilities
Less: Interestincome

Foreign exchange losses

Bank charges

Total

5.40 Other Income

Iltems
1. Governmentgrant recognisedin otherincome

Including: Government grant related to deferred income
Governmentgrant related to deferredincome
Governmentgrant directly recognisedin current profitor loss

2. Othersrelatedto daily operation activities and recognisedin
otherincome
Including: Charges of withholdingindividual income tax

Additional deduction of input tax

Income from debt restructuring
Total
5.41 Investment Income

Items
Investmentincome of trading financial assets during the holding period

Investmentincome from disposal of trading financial assets
Interestincome from time deposits

Total
5.42 Gains on Changes in Fair Values

Items

Held-for-tradingfinancial assets

Including: gains on changes in fair value of derivatives
Bank’s financial products

Held-for-trading financial liabilities

Total

5.43 Impairment Loss of Credit
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Reporting period

Reporting period
20,388.54
240,516.01
193,016.15
896,637.74
158,649.16
982,623.18
32,146,701.14

Reporting period
11,082,809.10
8,126,807.82
7,043,615.67
-4,274,603.16
448,978.74
213,569.01

Same period of last

Same period of last year

20,728.30
252,733.12
263,678.25
848,037.44

63,783.09

1,264,128.06
29,119,021.28

Same period of last year

14,346,616.80
12,261,469.88
2,383,878.11
-1,507,013.42
420,439.08
10,876,164.35

Related to assets

909,068.05

909,068.05

0.00

Reporting period
3,252,096.44
1,260,500.00

10,035,647.53
14,548,243.97

Reporting period
1,950,911.11
-432,800.00
2,383,711.11
0.00
195091111

year /income

2,623,900.61 Relatedtoincome

2,623,900.61 Relatedtoincome

0.00

Same period of last year

5,017,031.52
281,850.00
6,766,617.28
12,065,498.80

Same period of last year

1,384,875.00
-1,113,000.00

2,497,875.00
-2,869,500.00
-1,484,625.00
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Items
Bad debt of accounts receivables

Bad debt of other receivables
Total
5.44 Impairment Loss of Assets

Items
Impairment of inventories

Impairment of fixed assets
Total

5.45 Gains from Disposal of Assets

Items

Income from the disposal of fixed assets

Total

5.46 Non-operatingIncome

5.46.1 Details of non-operating income

Reporting period

Reportingperiod Same period of last year

Reporting period Same period of last year
1,389,333.18 13,021.14
-78,341.91 158,264.86
1.310,991.27 171,286.00
Reporting period Same period of last year
-4,439,574.84 -2,481,623.47
-946,112.84 -589,694.33
=2,385,687.68 =3,071,317.80

Recognizedin current
extraordinary gains

Same period of last

year and losses
600,085.35 316,839.99 600,085.35
600,085.35 316,839.99 600,085.35

Recognizedin current extraordinary

Items
Other
Total

5.47 Non-operating Expenses

Items

Reporting period Same period of last year

gains and losses

4,510,900.90 148,920.32
4.510,900.90 148,920.32

Recognizedin current extraordinary gains

Loss from damage or scrapping of non-
current assets
Including: fixed assets

Donations
Total

5.48 Income Tax Expenses

5.48.1 Details of income tax expenses

Items
Current tax expenses

Deferredtax expenses
Total

5.48.2 Reconciliation of accounting profit and income tax expenses

ltems
Profit before tax

Income tax expense atthe statutory /applicable tax rate

and losses

40,912.34 0.00

40,912.34 0.00

0.00 52,501.87

40,912.34 22,501.87
Reporting period Same period of last year
7,618,913.13 3,078,184.82
-2,414,003.28 2,081,789.80
5,204,909.85 5,159,974.62

Reporting period Same period of last year

49,722,327.92 42,929,802.58

12,430,581.98 10,732,450.65
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Items Reporting period Same period of last year
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries -4,643,985.61 -4,110,269.59
Adjustments of impact from prior period income tax 1,125,725.60 -124,467.09

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses orlosses 96,625.55 129,723.59

Effect of previously unrecognized deductiblelosses recognised
as deferred tax assets
Effect of deductible temporary differences and deductible losses

. -509,841.29 1,367,360.25
not recognised as deferred tax assets
Changes in balance of the beginning of the year deferred tax
asset/liabilities due to tax rate adjustment
R&D expenses plus deduction -3,294,196.38 -2,834,823.19
Depreciation of fixed assets (accelerates)
Income tax expenses 5,204,909.85 5,159,974.62

5.49 Other Comprehensive Income

For details of the other comprehensiveincome and related tax effect, transfer to profit or lossand

adjustment of other comprehensiveincome, refer to Note 5.31 Other Comprehensive Income.

5.50 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow

5.50.1 Other cash received relating to operating activities

Items Reporting period Same period of last year
Governmentgrants 909,068.05 2,623,900.61
Interestsincome 6,860,842.72 1,894,300.52
Rentincome 17,154,282.27 29,921,425.49
Funds in current account and others 7,014,534.88 14,921,295.09
Total 31,938,727.92 49,360,930.71

5.50.2 Other cash payments relating to operating activities

Items
Penaltiesand donations

Bank charges

Sales expenses, general and administrative expenses, and research and
development expenses paid by cash
Current accounts and others

Total

5.50.3 Other cash received relating to investing activities

Items
Time deposits recovered after maturity for the purpose to earn interestincomein
financial institutions

Total
5.50.4 Other cash payments relating to investing activities
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Reportingperiod Same period of last year

52,501.87 0.00
448,978.74 424,247.98
68,376,882.66 58,099,734.76
2,678,813.46 705,227.01
71.557.176.73 23.229.009.75

Reportingperiod Same period of last year

268,987,022.90 253,023,312.02
268,987,022.90 253,023,312.02
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Items

Time depositsinfinancial institutions forthe purpose of earninginterestincome

Total

5.50.5 Other cash received relating to financing activities

Items
Security depositof L/C
Total

5.50.6 Other cash payments relating to financing activities

Items

Lease payments of right-of-use assets
Security deposit of L/C

Total

5.51 Supplementary Information to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reporting period

Same period of last year

241,218,285.85

241,218,285.85

Reporting period

304,493,112.02

304,433,112.02

Same period of last year

6,069,665.05

—_ ey e

6.069,665.05

Reporting period

2,440,824.50

e B At LAt

2.440,824.50

Same period of last year

0.00
4,301,333.56
4.301,333.56

5.51.1 Supplementary information to the statement of cash flows

Supplementary information

1. Adjustments of net profitto cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit
Add: Provisions forimpairment of assets

Impairmentloss of credit

Depreciation of fixed assets, oil and gas asset and productive biological assets

Depreciation of use rights assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses

Gains on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets, and other long-term assets

Loss on scrapping of fixed assets
Gains on changes in fair value
Finance income
Investmentincome

Decreasesin deferred tax assets
Increasesin deferred tax liabilities
Increasesin inventories
Increasesin operating receivables
Increasesin operating payables
Others

Net cash flows from operating activities

2. Significantinvesting and financing activities not involving cash receipts and

payments:
Conversion of debt into capital

Convertible corporate bonds maturing within one year

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

3. Netincreasesin cash and cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Less: Cash equivalents atthe beginning of the reporting period

Add: Cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
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Reporting period

480,960.00
3,888,375.92
4.363,335.92

Same period of last year

44,517,418.07
5,385,687.68
-1,310,991.27
17,244,448.77
7,310,060.88
901,477.54
1,540,481.91
-600,085.35
0.00
-1,950,911.11
8,196,564.57
-14,548,243.97
-2,414,003.28
0.00
-17,859,898.34
-28,637,315.68
-44,071,683.03
0.00
-26,296,992.61

343,813,144.12
561,809,622.45

37,769,827.96
3,071,317.80
-171,286.00
17,674,478.12
9,151,332.12
2,785,480.27
1,785,451.67
-316,839.99
40,912.34
1,484,625.00
9,107,498.07
-12,065,498.80
2,031,949.90
-142,337.18
22,393,580.88
-46,254,255.61
-78,093,733.95
0.00
-29,747,497.40

434,069,413.50
575,511,846.95
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Supplementary information
Less: Cash equivalents atthe beginning of the reporting period

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents

5.51.2 The components of cash and cash equivalents

Items
1. Cash

Including: Cash on hand
Cash in bank available forimmediate use
Other monetary funds available forimmediate use
Depositin the central banks available forimmediate use
Depositin peer firms
Loan to peerfirms
2. Cash equivalents
Including: Bond investments maturing within three months

3. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Reporting period

Same period of last year

2217,96,478.33

Reporting period

-141,442,433.45

Same period of last year

343,813,144.12
782,436.23
342,946,232.24
84,475.65

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
343,813,144,12

5.51.3 Monetary funds that are not cash and cash equivalents

Reporting period
Items

Other monetary funds 3,253,013.75
Total 3,253,013.75

5.52 Foreign Currency Monetary ltems

5.52.1 Details for foreign currency monetary items:

Carrying amount in foreign
currency on 30 June 2024

Items

Cash and cash equivalents

Including: USD 15,638,989.36
JPY 350,953,891.42
IDR 2,026,965,119.80
EUR 22,938.76
GBP 9,419.62
HKD 133,049.24
HUF 81,016.00

Total

Short-term borrowings

Including: USD 3,000,000.00

=

Total

Accounts receivables

Including: USD 31,089,153.28
IDR 1,283,797,584.00
JPY 48,036,752.00
Total
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Exchange rate

Same period of last
year
2,803,727.37

2,803,727.37

434,069,413.50
694,389.02
433,304,758.29
70,266.19

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
434,069,413.50

Reason

Security depositfor L/C

Carrying amount in CNY on

7.126800
0.050094
0.000434
7.877100
9.143200
0.912680
0.021221

7.126800

7.126800
0.000434
0.050094

30 June 2024

111,455,949.37
17,580,684.24
879,702.86
180,690.91
86,125.47
121,431.38
1,719.24
130,306,303.47

21,380,400.00

== e

21,380,400.00

221,566,177.60
557,168.15
2,406,353.05
224,529,698.80
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Accounts payables

Including: USD 8,866,565.57 7.126800
EUR 12,600.00 7.877100
HKD 1,495.70 0.912680
IDR 1,654,963,523.69 0.000434

Total

Other receivables

Including: USD 23,211.81 7.126800
IDR 1,049,046,000.00 0.000434

Total

Other payables

Including: USD 104,553.46 7.126800
IDR 367,553,422.13 0.000434

Total

5.52.1 Description of overseas business entities

Name of the overseas operating entity: Pt.Star Comgistic Indonesia
Main business area: Indonesia

Accounting standard currency: US dollars

5.53 Lease

5.53.1 The Company as the lessee

Current profit and loss and cash flow related to the lease

Items

Short-termlease expensesincludedinthe profitand loss of the current period

Lease expense of low-value assetsincludedin current period (except short-termlease)
Interestexpense of the lease liability

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities asincludedin current
profitsand losses

Income obtained from the sublease of the use right assets

Total cash outflow related to leasing

5.53.2 The company shall be the lessor
5.53.2.1 Operation lease
Lease income

Items
Lease income
Including:income related to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease receipts
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63,190,239.50
99,251.46
1,365.10
718,254.17
64,009,110.23

165,425.93
455,285.96
£20,711.89

745,131.60
159,518.19
904,649.79

Reporting period

167,982.88
0.00

8,126,807.82

0.00

6,826,583.53

542,756.27

Reporting period

10,327,698.70

0.00
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6. R&D expenditures (Research and Development)

Item
Employee remunerations

Test expenses

Depreciation and amortization of

assets
Certification expenses

Rental expenses
Patent expenses
Travel expenses
Maintenance expenses
Consultant fees
Others

Total

Including: Expense recognition

Reporting period
23,261,847.82

3,430,331.72

2,189,562.63

773,128.19

20,388.54
240,516.01
193,016.15
896,637.74
158,649.16
982,623.18

== =

32,146,701.14

32,146,701.14

Same period of last year

19,869,956.56

2,169,153.45

3,595,330.05

771,492.96
20,728.30
252,733.12
263,678.25
848,037.44
63,783.09
1,264,128.06

P ALl Rttty

29,119,021.28

29,119,021.28

Capitalization

7.CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

7.1 business combination not under common control :

7.2 business combination under common control: none

7.3 Changesin the scope of consolidation for otherreasons: none

8. NTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

8.1 Interests in Subsidiaries

8.1.1 Composition of corporate group

Name of subsidiary

TsannKuen (Zhangzhou)

Enterprise Co., Ltd.(TKL)

TsannKuen China (Shanghai)

Enterprise Co., Ltd. (TKS)

none

Percentage of

Methods of acquisition

Acquired through

establishment

Acquiredthrough

46.875 business combination

Principal
Registere Nature of equity interests by
place of
d City business the Company (%)
business
Direct Indirect
Manufactures
Zhangzho home
Zhangzhou
u electronic
appliance
Manufactures
Shanghai  Shanghai home
electronic
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Principal
Name of subsidiary place of
business
Xiamen Tsannkuen Property
Xiamen
Services Co., Ltd. (TKW)
East Sino Development
Hong Kong
Limited. (EastSino)
Pt.Star ComgisticIndonesia
Indonesia
(scr)
Pt.Star ComgisticProperty
DevelopmentIndonesia Indonesia
(scpbI)
Orient Star Investments
Hong Kong

Limited (OSI)

Registere Nature of
d City business
appliance
Property
Xiamen
services
Hong Investment,
Kong Trading
Manufactures
home
Indonesia
electronic
appliance
Real estate
Indonesia
development
Hong Investment,
Kong Trading
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Percentage of

equityinterestsby Methods of acquisition

the Company (%)

Acquired through
100.00
establishment
Acquired through
75.00 businesscombination

under common control

Acquired through
75.00 businesscombination

under common control

Acquired through
75.00

establishment
Acquiredthrough
business

75.00

combination not under

common control
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8.2.2 Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Dividends declared to

Proportion of ownership Profit or loss attributable to

Name of interestheld by non- non- controllinginterests during distribute to non-controlling Non-controlling
- i i interests at the end of the
subsidiary controllinginterest the reporting period |nterests<.:|ur|ng'Fhe - -
reporting period reporting period
TKL 25 11,532,200.20 16,479,864.07 337,241,262.90

8.3.3 Main financial information of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries

30 June 2024
Name of Non-current

subsidiary Current assets Non-currentassets Total assets Current liabilities m Total liabilities

TKL 1,300,486,169.17  1,043,506,205.79 2,343,992,374.96 601,753,552.01 393,273,771.37 995,027,323.38
(Continued)
1 January 2024
Name of Non-current Non-current
subsidiary Current assets - . Total assets Current liabilities B Total liabilities
assets liabilities

TKL 1,509,634,463.61 820,943,048.06 2,330,577,511.67 569,651,700.35 392,170,104.23 961,821,804.58

(Continued)

Reporting period

Total comprehensive Netcash flows from
income operating activities

Name of subsidiary

Revenue Net profit/(loss)

TKL 736,700,275.24 46,128,800.78 18,948,235.38
(Continued)

The same period of last year

Name of subsidiary Total comprehensive Netcash flows from

Revenue Net profit/(loss) income operating activities
TKL 576,468,523.96 37,174,804.59 -21,617,536.02
9. Government Grants
Item in P&L statemen Reporting period The same period of last year
Other earnin 909,068.05
r earnings 2,623,900.61
Total 909,068.05 2,623,900.61
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10. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks related to the financial instruments of the Company arise from the recognition of various
financial assets and financial liabilities duringits operation, including credit risk, liquidity risk and

market risk.

Management of the Companyis responsible for determining risk management objectives and
policies related to financial instruments. Operational managementis responsible for the daily risk
management through functional departments (e.g. credit management department of the
Company reviews each credit sale). Internal audit departmentis responsible for the daily
supervision ofimplementation of the risk management policies and procedures, and report their

findings to the audit committeein a timely manner.

Overallrisk management objective of the Companyis to establish risk management policies to

minimize the risks without unduly affecting the competitiveness and resilience of the Company.
10.1 Credit Risk

Creditrisk is therisk of one party of the financial instrumentface to a financial loss because the
other party of the financial instrument fails to fulfill its obligation. The credit risk of the Company s
related to cash and equivalent, accounts receivables, other receivables and debt investments, etc.
Creditrisk of these financial assets is derived from the counterparty’s breach of contract. The

maximum risk exposure is equal to the carrying amount of these financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalent of the Company has lower credit risk, as they are mainly deposited in
such financial institutionsas commercial bank, of which the Company thinks with higher

reputation and financial position.

For accounts receivables, other receivables and debt investments, the Company establishes
related policies to control their credit risk exposure. The Company assesses credit capability of its
customers and determines their credit terms based on their financial position, possibility of the
guarantee from third party, credit record and other factors (such as current market status, etc.).
The Company monitorsits customers’ credit record periodically, and for those customers with
poor credit record, the Company will take measures such as written call, shortening or cancelling

their credit terms so as to ensure the overall credit risk of the Companyis controllable.
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10.1.1 Determination of significantincreases in credit risk

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether the credit risk on financial
instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition. When the Company determines
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, it considers based on
reasonable and supportable information thatis available without undue cost or effort, including
quantitative and qualitative analysis of historical information, external credit ratings and forward-
lookinginformation. The Company determines the changesin the risk of a default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument through comparingtherisk of a default occurringon
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrumentas at the date of initial recognition based on individual financial instrument or

a group of financial instruments with the similar credit risk characteristics.

When met one or more of the following quantitative or qualitative criteria, the Company
determines that the credit risk on financial instruments has increased significantly: the
qguantitative criteria applied mainly because as at the reportingdate, theincrease in the
probability of default occurring over the lifetime is more than a certain percentage since the initial
recognition;the qualitative criteria applied if the debtor has adverse changes in business and

economic conditions, early warninglist of customer, and etc.
10.1.2 Definition of credit-impaired financial assets

The criteria adopted by the Company for determination of credit impairment are consistent with
internal credit risk management objectives of relevant financial instruments in considering both

guantitative and qualitative indicators.

When the Company assesses whetherthe debtor hasincurred the credit impairment, the main
factors considered are as following: Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; a
breach of contract, e.g., default or past-due event; a lender having granted a concession to the
borrower for economic or contractual reasons relatingto the borrower’s financial difficulty that
the lender would not otherwise consider; the probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or otherfinancial re-organisation; the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties of the issuer or the borrower; the purchase or origination of a

financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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10.1.3 The parameter of expected credit loss measurement

The company measures impairment provision for different assets with the expected credit loss of
12-month or the lifetime based on whether there has been a significantincreasein credit risk or
credit impairment has occurred. The key parameters for expected credit loss measurement
include default probability, default loss rate and default risk exposure. The Company sets up the
model of default probability, defaultloss rate and default risk exposure in considering the
guantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as counterparties’ ratings, guarantee method and

collateral type, repayment method, etc.) and forward-lookinginformation.
Relevant definitions are as following:

Default probability refers to the probability of the debtor will fail to discharge the repayment

obligation over the next 12 months orthe entire remaininglifetime;

Default loss rate refers to the Company's expectation of the loss degree of default risk exposure.
The default loss rate varies depending on the type of counterparty, recourse method and priority,
and the collateral. The default loss rate is the percentage of the risk exposure loss when default

hasoccurred and it is calculated over the next 12 months or the entire lifetime;

The default risk exposure refers to the amount that the company should be repaid when default
has occurred in the next 12 months orthe entire lifetime. Both the assessment of significant
increase in credit risk of forward-lookinginformationand the calculation of expected credit losses
involve forward-lookinginformation. Through historical data analysis, the Company identifies key
economicindicatorsthat have impact on the credit risk and expected credit losses for each

business.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Companyis the carrying amount of each financial
assetin the statement of financial position. The Company does not provide any other guarantees

that may expose the Companyto credit risk.

For the accounts receivable of the Company, the amount of top five clients represents 80.52% of
the total (31 December 2023: 80.67%); for the other receivables, the amount of the top five
entities represents 79.28% of the total (31 December 2023: 84.84%).

10.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riskis the risk of shortage of funds when fulfilling the obligation of settlement by
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deliveringcash or other financial assets. The Companyisresponsible for the capital management
of all of its subsidiaries, including short-terminvestment of cash surplus and dealing with
forecasted cash demand by raisingloans. The Company’s policy isto monitorthe demand for
short-term and long-term floating capital and whether the requirement of loan contractsis

satisfied so as to ensure to maintain adequate cash and cash equivalents.

10.3 Market Risk
10.3.1 Foreign currency risk

The main exchange raterisk of the Company comes from the foreign currency assets and liabilities
held by the Company and its subsidiaries thatare not denominated in its functional currency. The
Company bears the foreign exchange risk primarily concerned with USD, JPY, IDR, EUR, HKD and
NTD. Three of the Company’s subsidiaries use foreign currencies for purchasingand sales,
including SCl uses USD for purchasingand sales, SCPDI uses IDR for purchasingand sales. Other
than the three subsidiaries mentioned above, other major business activities of the Company are

priced and settled in CNY.

10.3.1.1 As of 30 June 2024, the main foreign exchange exposure of the Company’s foreign
currency assets and liabilitiesare as follows (For presentation purpose, the exposures are

presented in CNY and transferred at the spot rate of the balance sheet date):

ltems 30 June 2024 1 January 2024
Cash and cash equivalent 130,306,303.47 126,432,534.81
Accounts receivable 224,529,698.80 202,329,483.53
Other receivables 620,711.89 534,297.53
Short-term loan 21,380,400.00 0.00
Accounts payable 64,009,110.23 66,103,441.28
Other payables 904,649.79 1,158,796.87

The Company continuously monitors the volume of foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency assets and liabilitiesto minimize the foreign currency risk. The Group purchases foreign
currency forward contracts to reduce the foreign exchangerisk, and foreign currency forward

contracts shall be based on the amount of foreign currency assets.
10.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the Company primarily arises from its long-term interest-bearing debts, such
as long-termloansand bonds payables, etc. Financial liabilities with floatinginterest rate make the

Companysubject to cash flow interest rate risk, and financial liabilities with fixed interest rate
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make the Company subject to fair value interest rate risk. The Company determines the relative
proportionofthe fixed interest contracts and floatinginterest contracts based on the current

market environment.

Finance department of the Company’s headquarter monitorsinterest rate of the group
continuously. Increase of the interest rate will resultin the increase of the cost of new interest -
bearingdebtsand the interest expense of the unpaid interest-bearing debts with floating rate, and
subsequently lead to significant negative impact on the financial performance of the Company.
The management makes adjustmentin accordance with the update market condition in a timely

manner.

11. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

The inputs used in the fair value measurementinits entirety are to be classified in the level of the

hierarchy in which the lowest level input that is significant to the measurementis classified.

* Level 1: Inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

* Level 2: Inputs for the assets or liabilities (other than those included in Level 1) that are either
directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3: Inputsare unobservableinputs for the assets or liabilities

11.1 Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value as at 30 June 2024

Fair value at 30 June 2024

Items
Levell Level 2 Level3 Total

Recurring fairvalue measurements
(a) Held-for-trading financial assets
I(;)Szlnanualassets at fair value through profit or 421,959,944.45 421,959,944.45
Debt instruments 421,959,944.45 421,959,944.45
Equity instruments
Derivatives 0.00
(b) Other investmentsin equity instruments 40,000.00 40,000.00
(c) Other non-currentfinancial assets
Ec;z?l assets measured at fairvalue on a recurring 421,999,944.45 421,999,044.45
(d) Held-for-trading financial liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 0.00 0.00
or loss
Including: Held-for-trading bonds

Derivatives 0.00 0.00

Others
Total liabilities measured atfairvalue on a 0.00
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recurring basis

11.2 Determination for the Quoted Prices of Fair Value Measurement in Level 2 on a Recurring
or Nonrecurring Basis
The fair value measurementis based on the valuation provided by the bank where the unsettled

forward foreign exchangeislocated on the balance sheet date.

12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
12.1 General Information of the Parent Company

Percentage of
Registered capital

Registered Nature of the equityinterests Votingrightsin the

Name of the parent (NTD ten
address business in the Company Company (%)

thousand)

%
Manufactures and

Taiwan saleselectrical 300,000.00 42.90 44.68

STAR COMGISTIC

CAPITALCO., LTD.
equipment

Note: The ultimate controlling party of the Company is STAR COMGISTIC CAPITALCO., LTD.

12.2 General Information of Subsidiaries
Refer to Notes 8 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES for details of the subsidiaries.
12.3 Other Related Parties of the Company

Name Relationship with the Company
Thermaster Electronic(Xiamen) Ltd. The company is directly controlled by the key managementand closed family

members
TsannKuen Enterprise Co., Ltd. Same actual controller
Tsann Kuen Japan Co., Ltd. The same ultimate holding company

12.4 Related Party Transactions
12.4.1 Purchases or sales of goods, rendering or receiving of services
Purchases of goods, receiving of services:

Approval trade Whether exceedtrade Same period of last

Related parties Content of transaction  Reporting period credit credit or not year
Thermaster Electronic 5, 1\ce of goods 16,417,697.76  32,000,000.00 No 11,667,909.26
(Xiamen) Ltd.

Total 16,417,697.76 11,667,909.26

Sales of goods and rendering of services:

Related parties Content Reporting period Same period of last year
of transaction
STAR COMGISTIC CAPITALCO., LTD. Sales of goods 1,241,109.47 1,556,281.63
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Total 1241,109.47 1,556,281.63
12.4.2 Key management personnel compensation

Currency: Ten thousand yuan

Item Reporting period Same period of last year
Key management personnel compensation 210.59 207.01

12.4.3 Other related party transactions

Related parties Content of transaction Reporting period Same period of last year

STAR COMGISTIC CAPITAL CO., LTD. Quality claim payment 0.00 3,407.71
TASANN KUEN JAPAN CO., LTD. Receive laborservice 686,252.07 741,220.10
Total 686,252.07 744,627.81

12.5 Receivables and Payables with Related Parties
12.5.1 Receivables

30 June 2024 1 January 2024
Related parties
Items Book balance M Book balance M
— —  provision ———— provision
Accounts receivable STAR COMGISTIC CAPITALCO., LTD. 532 032.72 726,049.84
=== =
Total 532,032.72 726,049.84
12.5.2 Payables
. 30 June 2024 1 January 2024
ltems Related parties —_
Accounts payable Thermaster Electronic (Xiamen) Ltd 7 806,343.02 7328 112.41
Total 2.806,343.02 2.328,112.41

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

13.1 Significant Commitments

Other Significant Commitments

As of June 30, 2024, the Company has no significant commitments to disclose.
13.2 Contingencies

Significant contingencies existingat the balance sheet date:

As of 30 June 2024, The Company has no significant contingencies need to be disclosed.

14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

None

15. NOTES TO THE MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
15.1 Accounts Receivable
15.1.1 Accounts receivable by aging
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Aging
Within 1 year
Including: 1 — 90 days
91 —180 days
181 - 270 days
271 — 365 days
1-2 years
2-3 years
Over 3 years
ncluding: 3-4 years
4-5 years
Over 5 years
Subtotal
Less: Provision for bad debt

Total

30 June 2024 1 January 2024
497,529.68 1,460,836.35
497,519.78 1,460,719.66

0.00 57.29

0.00 4.80

9.90 54.60
20,030.34 20,000.00
0.00 9,677.56
125,418.08 115,740.52
20,418.08 110,740.52
100,000.00 0.00
5,000.00 5,000.00
642,978.10 1,606,254.43
33,411.08 33,300.55
£609,567.02 1,572,953.88

15.1.2 Accounts receivable by bad debt provision method

Category

Provision forbad debt recognised individually
Provision forbad debt recognised collectively
Including: Portfolio by age

Portfolio by related parties
Total

(Continued)

Category

Provision forbad debt recognised individually
Provision forbad debt recognised collectively
Including: Portfolio by age

Portfolio by related parties
Total

Book balance

Amount Proportion (%)

30 June 2024

Provision forbad debt

] Carrying amount
Amount Proportion (%)

0.00 0.00
642,978.10 100.00
642,978.10 100.00

0.00 0.00
642,978.10 100.00

Book balance

0.00 0.00 0.00
33,411.08 5.20 609,567.02
33,411.08 5.20 609,567.02
0.00 0.00 0.00
33,411.08 5.20 609,567.02

1 January 2024
Provision forbad debt

Carrying amoun

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,606,254.43 100.00  33,300.55 2.07 1,572,953.88
1,577,938.02 98.24  33,300.55 2.11 1,544,637.47

28,316.41 1.76 0.00 0.00 28,316.41
1,606,254.43 100.00  33,300.55 2.07 1,572,953.88

Specificinstructions for provision for bad debts: accounts receivable with bad debt provision

recognised collectively by aging

Aging

Not overdue
Overdue 1 —30 days
Overdue 31 - 60 days
Overdue 61 — 90 days

Overdue more than 90 days

Total
(Continued)

30 June 2024
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526,369.30 2,631.85 0.50
87,530.99 3,938.89 4.50
987.00 197.40 20.00
2,632.49 1,184.62 45.00
25,458.32 25,458.32 100.00
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Aging 1 January 2024
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
Not overdue 1,552,309.24 7,761.55 0.50
Overdue 1-30 days 94.01 4.23 4.50
Overdue 31 — 60 days
Overdue 61 — 90 days
S;’jsrd“e more than 50 25,534.77 25,534.77 100.00
Total 1,577,938.02 33,300.55 211
Refer to Note 3.11 for the recognition criteria and explanation of the provision for bad debts
collectively by groups.
15.1.3 Bad debt provision recognized, recovered or reversed during the reporting period
1 Januar Changes duringthe reporting period 30 June
Category
2024 Provision Recoveryorreversal Write-off Others 2024
Provision for bad debt recognised collectively 33,300.55 24,204.24 24,093.71 0.00 0.00 33,411.08
Total 33,300.55  24,204.24 24,093.71 0.00 0.00 33,411.08
15.1.4 Top five closing balances by entity
Proportion of the
Contract Assets at 30 balance to th? fotal .
Entity name Balance at 30 June 2024 June 2024 Total  accounts receivable Provisionfor bad debt
— and Contract Assets
%
No. 1 428 344.79 428,344.79 66.62 3,185.02
No. 2 100,000.00 100,000.00 15.55 500.00
No.3 59.137.19 59,137.19 9.20 2,661.17
No. 4 23,470.00 23,470.00 3.65 1,049.31
No.5 20,418.08 20,418.08 3.17 20,418.08
Total 631,370.06 0.00 631,370.06 98.19 22.813.58

15.2 Other Receivables

15.2.1 Other receivables by category

Items
Interestreceivable
Dividendreceivable

Other receivables
Total

15.2.2 Other receivables
15.2.2.1 Other receivables by aging

Aging
Within 1 year

Including: 1 — 90 days
91 - 180 days

30 June 2024

4,837,065.41
4.837.065.41

30 June 2024
4,778,359.88
4,626,848.18

35,045.21
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3,673,370.28
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1 January 2024
3,593,370.28
3,592,370.28

500.00



Tsann Kuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd. Notes to the financial statements

181 — 270 days 115,966.49 0.00
271 - 365 days 500.00 500.00
1-2 years 50,500.00 30,000.00
2-3 years 30,000.00 0.00
Over 3 years 0.00 50,000.00
ncluding: 3-4 years 0.00 0.00

4-5 years 0.00 0.00

Over 5 years 0.00 50,000.00
Subtotal 4,858,859.88 3,673,370.28
Less: Provision forbad debt 21,794.47 0.00
Total 4,837,065.41 3,673,370.28

15.2.2.2 Other receivables by nature

Nature 30 June 2024 1 January 2024
Export tax refund 0.00 0.00
Other open credits 2,558,874.42 2,110,359.23
Deposit 136,000.00 136,000.00
Due from related parties 2,163,985.46 1,427,011.05
Subtotal 4,858,859.88 3,673,370.28
Less: Provisions forbad debt 21,794.47 0.00
Total 4,837,065.41 3.673,370.28
15.2.2.3 Bad debt provision
Bad debt provision Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime expected crec.ilt Lifetime expected credit Total

expected losses (not credit- losses (credit-impaired)

credit losses impaired) B

Balance at 1 January 2024 0.00
Balance at 1 January 2024 recognisedin the _ _ L o
reporting period
Transferto stage 2 0.00
Transferto stage 3 0.00
Transferback to stage 2 0.00
Transferback to stage 1 0.00
Provision 21,794.47 21,794.47
Recovery 0.00
Reversal 0.00
Write-off 0.00
Other changes 0.00
Balance on 30 June 2024 21.794.47 0.00 0.00 21,794.47

15.2.2.4 Bad debt provision recognized, recovered or reversed during the reporting period

Changes duringthe reporting period

1 January
30 June 2024
Category 2024 Provision RECOVENVOT \viite_off Others
- reversal —  —  —
Provision forbad debt recognised individually 0.00
Accounts receivable with provision forbad debt 21.794.47 21.794.47

recognised collectively
Total 000  21,794.47 0.00 000 000 2179447
15.2.2.5 Other receivables write-off during the reporting period
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Nature

Entity name

State Grid Fujian Electric Power Co., Ltd. Current
Xiamen Power Supply Company balances
Alipay account of Tsann Kuen (China) Current
Enterprise Co., Ltd. balances
Tmall supply and marketing platform Deposit
Xiamen TsannKuen Flagship Store Alipay Deposit
Shuyi Shuer Cultural Media (Shanghai) Current
Co., Ltd. balances

Total

15.3 Long-term Equity Investments

Balance as of 30

June 2024

142,387.68

116,638.86

50,000.00
50,000.00

20,000.00

379,026.54

15.3.1 Situation of long-term equity investments

30 June 2024

Proportion of the
balance to the

Agi
2glng total other
receivables (%)

Within 90 days 2.93
Within 1 year 2.40
Within 1 year 1.03
Over 1year 1.03
Within 90 days 0.41
.80

1 January 2024

Allowance for

bad debts as at 30

June 2024

Provision
Items Provision for
Book Carrying amount Book balance for Carrying amount
balance impairment
E— impairment
Investmentsin
923,414,701.56 0.00 923,414,701.56 923,414,701.56 0.00 923,414,701.56
subsidiaries
Total 923,414,701.56 0.00 923,414,701.56 923,414,701.56 0.00 923,414,701.56
15.3.2 Investments in subsidiaries
Provision
Increase Decrease for Provisionfor
during the during the impairment impairment
Investees 1 January 2024 30 June 2024
reporting reporting during the at 30 June
period period reporting 2024
period
TKL 921,914,701.56 921,914,701.56
TKW 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
Total 923,414,701.56 923,414,701.56

15.4 Revenue and Cost of Sales

Items

The Reporting period

Revenue

Principal activities

Other activities

Total

15.5 Investment Income

Items

1,419,149.09
28,680,172.61

30,099,321.70

Costs of sales
968,090.70
17,192,678.24

18,160,768.94

The Reporting period

The same period of last year

Revenue
1,685,572.73
27,336,758.64

29,022,331.37

Costs of sales
1,264,301.23
16,714,487.43

17,578,788.66

The same period of last year
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Items The Reporting period The same period of last year
Investmentincome from long-term equity investments under equity 50 748 305.69 58 215.670.49
method

Total 50,748,305.69 58,215,670.49
16. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

16.1 Extraordinary Gains or Losses

Items Amount Description

Losses on disposal of non-currentassets (inclusive of impairmentallowance

write-offs) 600,085.35

Government grants recognisedin current profitor loss (exceptgovernment
grants that is closely related to operations and determined based on a fixed scale 909,068.05
according to the national unified standard)

Mainly investmentincome
from sale of forward

Gains /(losses) arisingfrom changes in fairvalue of held-for-tradingfinancial foreign exchange
assets and held-for-trading financial liabilities during the holding period and 6,463,507.55 contracts, gains on changes
investmentincome arising from disposal of held-for-trading financial assets, held- of fair value, income of
for-tradingfinancial liabilities and assets classified as held for sale except effective financial products and
hedgingtransactions related to the Company's principal activities interest of time deposits

Funds occupation fee recognised in current profitor loss from non-financial
companies

Gains /(losses) on entrusted investments or asset managements
Gains /(losses) arising from entrusted loans to other entities

Provision forimpairmentof each asset dueto force majeure such as a natural
disaster

Reversal of provision forimpairmentof accounts receivable tested for
impairmentindividually

The excess of attributable fairvalue of net identifiable assets overthe
consideration paid for subsidiaries, associates, or jointventuresrecognised by
the Company

Netgains /(losses) of subsidiaries arising from business combination under
common control from the beginning of the reporting periodtill the combination
date

Gains/(losses) generated from non-monetary asset exchange
Gains /(losses) on debt restructuring

Corporate restructuring charge, such as expenditure forstaff resettlementand
integration cost

Impact of one-off adjustment to current profit or loss based on the requirements
of taxation and accounting laws and regulations

Share-based payment expenses recognized at one time due to cancellation or
modification of the equity incentive plan

For cash-settled share-based payments, gains or losses arising from changes in
the fairvalue of employee remuneration payable afterthe vesting date

Gains /(losses) arisingfrom changes in fairvalue of investment properties
adopting fair value model for subsequent measurement
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Items Amount Description
Gains /(losses) from excess of fairvaluein non-arm’s length transactions

Gains /(losses) arising from contingencies otherthan those related to principal
activities of the Company

Custody fee income from entrusted operations
Other non-operating income/expenses exceptforitems mentioned above 96,418.45

Other extraordinary gains/(losses)defined

Less: Income tax effects 1,338,573.80
Non-controllinginterests effects (aftertax) 1,886,943.33
Total 4,843,562.27

16.2 Return on Net Assets and Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’)

Weighted average EPS
Profit for the reporting period return on net
assets (%) Basic (Yuan per share) Diluted (Yuan per share)
Net profit attributable to ordinary 311 0.18 0.18
shareholders
Net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders after extraordinary gains and 2.68 0.16 0.16

losses
16.3 Supplementary Information on Changes in Accounting Policies

Please see Note 3.30 “Changesin Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates” for

details.

Name of the Company: TsannKuen (China) Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Date: 9 August 2024
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